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MissiOn 
stAteMent
PWP is committed to providing safe 
and reliable water and power with superior 
customer service at reasonable rates.

Service Area Population  170,402 

Service Area Square Miles  26 

Number of Miles of Water Mains  520 

Number of Wells  18 

Number of Reservoirs  14 

Total Reservoir Capacity (gallons)  110,000,000 

Number of Treatment Plants  1 

Number of Booster Stations  19 

Peak Day in Acre Feet (September 2006)  147 

Current Year Peak Day in Acre Feet  106 

Number of Services  38,193 

Residential Usage (gallons-per-capita per day)  92.7

VisiOn stAteMent
PWP will be a valued community asset, an  
exceptional employer, a partner in Pasadena’s 
prosperous future, and contribute to the quality of life 
in Pasadena.

Water
 

Service Area Population  144,842 

Service Area Square Miles  23 

Number of Distribution Miles  665 

Number of Sub-transmission Miles  85 

Number of Poles  11,059 

Number of Receiving Stations  3 

Number of Substations  11 

Peak Day in MW (September 2010)  320 

Current Year Peak Day in MW (July 24, 2019)  275
 

Number of Services 67,446

POWer

FiscAl yeAr 2020 serVice DAtA

(August 2019)
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city cOuncil GOAls  
& ObjectiVes

•   to maintain fiscal responsibility and stability;

•   improve, maintain and enhance public facilities and

    infrastructure;

•   increase conservation and sustainability;

•   improve mobility and accessibility throughout the city;

•   support and promote the quality of life and local economy;

•   and ensure public safety
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When we presented our Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2019 Annual Report just a year ago, nobody 
could have predicted how significantly our lives would change in just a matter of a few 
months. Since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, our community, state, nation, and the 
world has been managing through a time of great uncertainty – adjusting how we approach 
everyday actions and activities in order to protect public health and safety. On behalf of 
Pasadena Water and Power (“PWP”), a department of the City of Pasadena, we are grateful to 
be of service during these challenging times and always.  We hope that you and your families are 
safe and well as we present to you our FY 2020 Annual Report.
 
In March 2020, the City Council provided financial relief to the community through a number of utility-
related initiatives including the refunding of over $11 million in Utility Underground Surtax (“UUG”), 
which was collected over a two-year period beginning in April 2018, as well as a six-month suspension  
of new UUG fees.  In addition, utility service shutoffs and related penalties associated with non-payment 
have been suspended until further notice. 
 
Now, more than ever, customers depend on safe and reliable water and electric services and PWP is 
committed to the highest standards. Despite pandemic-related operational challenges, PWP continues to 
provide superior service while adhering to strict health and safety guidelines. Protections and practices include 
use of Personal Protective Equipment, social distancing, and enhanced cleaning of facilities and vehicles to ensure the safety 
of both employees and the public. While certain internal tasks, functions, and work plans have been adjusted or reprioritized 
to support customer needs, staff telecommuting, and new work practices that ensure continuity of projects; the changes have 
had little or no impact on service. All PWP work locations have been modified and stocked with sanitizing supplies to ensure 
employee safety.  For over 100 years, customers have trusted PWP to bring essential water and electric services to Pasadena. 
We are here, “always on,” and sincerely grateful for the continued privilege of serving the community.
 
While COVID-19 brought unprecedented challenges, PWP had much to celebrate in FY 2020.  Over $280 million in operating 
revenues were generated during the year with over $17 million transferred to the General Fund to support vital safety and 
other City services.  In addition, almost $50 million was invested in capital improvements to support water and electric system 
infrastructure, service equipment, technology, and customer projects. 
 
The long-awaited Marengo Charging Plaza was completed in FY 2020 and is now open to the public. Developed through a 
collaboration with Tesla, the location is one of the largest Electric Vehicle fast-charging plazas in the United States and  
supports ongoing transportation electrification efforts in Pasadena. Major contracts were also awarded during the year to 
support the Customer Information System Replacement Project, a new, modern solution that integrates billing functionality  
with multi-faceted benefits including a full-service customer portal, improved data tracking, and a platform from which to 
launch sophisticated operational technologies such as smart meters. In addition, the new Water System and Resources Plan, 
a long-term planning guide for water resources and infrastructure investment was completed during the year and will be 
presented to the City Council for approval in FY 2021. A similar planning document for Power Delivery is in progress.  

PWP is actively reducing carbon resources from its energy portfolio, and is on track to achieving the ambitious targets of Senate 
Bill 100, including a Renewable Portfolio Standard (“RPS”) of 60 percent by 2030 and a planning goal of zero emissions from 
electricity generation by 2045. At the end of Calendar Year (“CY”) 2019, PWP had achieved a RPS of 37.5 percent and reduced 
Greenhouse Gas emissions by over 50 percent compared to 1990 levels. Pasadena’s RPS is expected to increase to 40 percent 
by the end of CY 2020. With pandemic-related restrictions and mandates in place for nearly a year, in-person public outreach, 
programs, and associated services were significantly curtailed beginning in March 2020. However, every effort continues to be 
made to make information available through electronic and virtual mediums. PWP is monitoring conditions and will resume its 
popular array of in-person community programs and events when it becomes safe to do so.

Looking back at the accomplishments and challenges of FY 2020, it is with extreme appreciation for our employees, who 
represent the true meaning of public service. Throughout the events of the past year and always, the hard work, dedication,  
and professionalism demonstrated by the workforce in all areas of the organization continue to earn PWP its distinguished, 
long-standing role in the community. We are extremely proud of their ability to adapt to the new normal and grateful for the 
service they provide every day. We would also like to thank the City Council for its leadership, City leaders and staff in all 
departments for their support, and the residents and businesses of Pasadena for a long and valued partnership. Together,  
we are Pasadena’s community-owned utility.   

tO Our cOMMunity:

Gurcharan S. Bawa 
General Manager,  
Pasadena Water and Power 
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Steve Mermell 
Pasadena City Manager
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AlwAys On
For over a century, Pasadena Water and Power (“PWP”) has been providing the local community with 
safe, high-quality, and dependable water and electric services at affordable rates. We take pride in the 
vital role that we play in the lives of Pasadena’s residents and businesses and are sincerely grateful 
for the ongoing privilege to be of service.  In these uncertain times, we understand the importance of 
reliability, especially when it comes to essential utility services. As we all continue to navigate through 
the unprecedented challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic and adapt to an ever-changing way of life in 
the prioritization of health and safety, it is important that safe and reliable water and electric services 
continue without disruption, delays, or inconvenience. Now and throughout the pandemic, PWP has provided 
the same high-quality services that customers expect while keeping crews and staff safe. Following 
strict guidelines that include increased use of Personal Protective Equipment (“PPE”); additional safety 
training; added hygiene and safety upgrades in vehicles and buildings; reorganization of tasks, work 
schedules, and locations; and reprioritization of certain work plans and projects; PWP is making every 
effort to minimize service impacts to customers. The safety and well-being of our 366 employees 

and every member of the public remains PWP's first priority and we are committed to meeting the 
needs of our customers while adhering to all health and safety mandates and protocols.  PWP’s long 

success is directly related to its ongoing collaboration with the local community and we sincerely 
appreciate this valued partnership. The hard work and dedication of staff, and the ongoing 

support of our customers ensures that Pasadena’s community-owned utility is  
“always on” and ready to deliver.

Despite challenges created by the pandemic, PWP achieved several significant  
milestones in Fiscal Year ("FY") 2020 including completion of the highly-anticipated 

Marengo Charging Plaza, a collaboration with Tesla. Featuring a combination of 44 Tesla 
Superchargers and City-owned Universal Fast Chargers, the location is one of the 

largest Electric Vehicle fast-charging plazas in the United States.  

Significant progress was also made on a major project to replace PWP’s aging 
Customer Information System, with four new contracts awarded during the 

year to support the recently-selected Oracle cloud-based solution. A contract 
was also awarded for a major power plant gas turbine repair and control 
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system retrofit that will restore approximately 22 Megawatts 
("MW") of local generation and improve system reliability.  

Improvements to water infrastructure and facilities continued in 
FY 2020, including near-completion of the Arroyo Booster Station 
replacement, which will improve operating capability, system 
reliability, and fire protection services of the water system. 
Progress was also made on the Sunset Reservoir Replacement 
Project with the installation of isolation valves to facilitate the 
segregation and draining of the old reservoirs. An ongoing 
assessment project focused on under-performing and inoperable 
wells also made progress during the year. In addition, the Sheldon 
Reservoir Demonstration Landscape was completed at Sheldon 
Reservoir as part of an ongoing water facilities improvement 
project and an example of drought-tolerant landscaping.

By the end of the fiscal year, PWP facilities were being prepared for 
support and administrative staff who have been working remotely 
to safely begin transitioning back to offices, when appropriate. They 
will join operations and field staff who have been providing ongoing 
essential services at City facilities and public locations throughout 
the Safer at Home mandate. While the remote work transition 
has sometimes been challenging, the priority to provide seamless 
customer service has also inspired great creativity, dynamic 
collaboration, and effective new approaches to existing processes 
and communication methods. With the pandemic still very much a 
part of our community for the foreseeable future, PWP will continue 
to fine-tune its operations and adapt to new changes while delivering 
the same safe, reliable, and high-quality water and electric services 
that our customers know and trust.    

COVID-19: Keeping Our Workforce Safe

As a provider of critical water and electric services, 
PWP has been serving its customers throughout 
the pandemic without schedule changes, delays, or 
interruptions. To ensure the safety of employees 
and the community, PWP works with the City’s 
Emergency Operations Center (“EOC”) Logistics 
Unit to procure PPE and services such as vehicle 
and facility sanitizing.  In the early weeks of the 
pandemic, overall demand for PPE was extremely 
high, making critical items such as masks, hand 
sanitizer, and disinfectant products scarce and 
difficult to source. City staff worked closely with 
both established and new vendors to secure items 
that met both safety and quality standards, and 
that could also be delivered as quickly as possible. 
Also, as an essential business, PWP secured 
masks and other supplies from federal and state 
resources through its memberships with the 
American Public Power Association, California 
Municipal Utilities Association, and California 
Utilities Emergency Association. 

As the market for PPE items continues to stabilize, 
PWP remains proactive in its sourcing efforts to 
ensure that critical items are always available so 
that workers can perform their jobs safely.  
 

Pandemic-related Service  
ShutOff SuSPenSiOn
Due to the financial hardships experienced by 
so many residents and businesses in Pasadena 
during this uncertain time, PWP has temporarily 
suspended shutoffs of water and electric service 
related to non-payment and waived any associated 
late fees. The assistance remains in effect and will 
be reassessed as conditions change. 
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leGislAtiVe AnD  
reGulAtOry uPDAte

PWP aligns its legislative and regulatory objectives with the City’s State 
and Federal legislative policies and strategic goals. We actively engage 
in California’s legislative process to promote and protect Pasadena’s 
priorities and interests with advocacy focused on legislation that supports 
reliable, sustainable, and reasonably-priced water and power services.  

Impacts of the pandemic also affected the 2019/2020 State legislative session, with 
unplanned recesses and schedule changes resulting in a significant reduction in 
the number of bills taken up for consideration. In addition, facility closures and social 

distancing protocols largely 
prevented traditional in-person 
advocacy, which required nearly all engagement with representatives, 
utility organizations, and other stakeholders to be done remotely. However, 
while the pandemic definitely altered the processes of legislative activity, it 
also strengthened relationships and reinforced ongoing collaboration and 
coalition efforts with neighboring utilities. Specifically, PWP worked closely 
with its Tri-City counterparts, Glendale and Burbank, on various shared 
concerns including specific energy resource procurement, wildfires, and 
microgrids. Despite the various challenges, significant actions were taken 
on key utility-related issues during the year.

Specific Resource energy Procurement Mandates
The economic downturn triggered by the pandemic motivated a push for energy procurement mandate proposals that 

promised to create jobs. While sensitive to the dire unemployment situation in California, PWP opposed bills 
such as Assembly Bill (“AB”) 2255 (Eggman) and AB 1720 (Carrillo), which would have forced the procurement  

of long-duration energy storage largely for the benefit of a single pumped-hydro project. Since PWP is a  
fully-resourced utility, requirements to procure addtional, unneeded energy would have impacted 

Pasadena ratepayers at a time when so many are experiencing unprecedented financial strain. 
Furthermore, long-duration energy storage is not considered a renewable resource under California’s 

Renewable Portfolio Standard ("RPS"). Investing in ineligible resources provides no direct benefits to 
Pasadena since PWP already plans and procures its energy supply based on local needs.  Ultimately, 

the Legislature rejected both bills.

PWP also opposed AB 2547 (Gonzalez), which would have eliminated a vital, cost-saving 
compliance option in the RPS and increased requirements to procure higher cost energy 

products. PWP’s procurement strategy has always focused on practical investments that 
meet Pasadena’s resource planning needs, achieve state environmental targets, and 

protect ratepayers from unnecessary rate increases. California’s publicly-owned electric 
utilities heavily opposed AB 2547, which ultimately did not pass in  

the Legislature.

RPS Compliance Verification
The California Energy Commission ("CEC") audits PWP’s RPS portfolio every three 

years, most recently for Compliance Period 2 (2014-2016), which was finalized 
and reported in July 2019. With the enactment of Senate Bill 100 in 2018, the 

LegisLative advocacy 
• Support reliable and sustainable water 
 and power services at reasonable rates.

•  Support local control of resource 
 planning, procurement, and operations. 

• oppoSe imposed mandates that limit 
 operating flexibility or increase costs.
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PWP Renewable energy Portfolio Compliance Summary
(GWh per year)

 CY CY               CY Current Contract
 2019 i 2020 ii      2021iii Status Type

HYDROPOWER                                          
Azusa Hydro 0.0 0.0 0.0 Online  PWP
 
WIND                                                      
High Wind 11.0 12.1 11.9 Online PWP
Milford I iv 2.2 1.1 10.2 Online SCPPA
Powerex 0.0 110.0 85.0  PWP
Short Term Energy Purchase 69.8 24.5 2.6  
 
LANDFILL GAS                                         
Chiquita Canyon iv 4.1 4.1 40.0 Online SCPPA
Puente Hills 72.3 53.2 55.4 Online SCPPA
 
GEOTHERMAL                                             
Heber South iv 2.1 2.1 15.9 Online SCPPA
 
SOLAR     
Windsor Reservoir Solar 0.0 0.0 0.0 Online PWP
Columbia II Solar 7.0 7.2 7.5 Online SCPPA
Kingbird Solar A Project  95.1 35.4 50.0 Online PWP
Antelope Big Sky Ranch Solar  0.0 18.0 18.0 Online SCPPA
Summer Solar  18.6 17.8 18.0 Online SCPPA
 
REC ONLY     
Falls Creek 65.66 60.0 53.0 Online PWP
Purchased 16.3 13.7 2.3 Online PWP
 
Total Renewable 364.13 359.23 369.89  
Retail Sales v 971.0 897.8 924.7  
% Renewable 37.5% 40.0% 40.0%           Next IRP 
goal:  
% IRP Renewable Target  37.5% 40.0% 40.0%            40% by   
                                                                                                                2020

CY = Calendar Year; SCPPA = Southern California Public Power Authority   
i  Reported    
ii  Preliminary Only    
iii  Forecast Only   
iv  Excess Procurement sold to a third party (2019-2020)
v  Retail sales total excludes sales to Green Power customers and other adjustments for self-consumed electricity per RPS regulations

PWP Policy on discontinuation  
of Residential Water Services  
for non-Payment 

• extends delinquency period  
 before shutoff.

• enhances customer notification  
 process.

• Provides a formal appeals  
 process.

• defines and limits reconnection fees.

• Available in multiple languages.

Water Shutoff Protection  
Act implementation
In compliance with the Water Shutoff 
Protection Act of 2018, which became 
effective on February 1, 2020, PWP 
implemented a new policy specifically for 
shutoffs related to delinquent residential 
water accounts. The multi-lingual policy 
includes detailed definitions and processes 
for billing, delinquency period, customer 
notifications, payment deferrals, hardship 
arrangements, penalties, inquiries and 
appeals. PWP presented a summary of 
the law and its planned implementation to 
the City’s Municipal Services Committee 
in November 2019. The City Council 
subsequently approved amendments 
to the General Fee Schedule to include 
reconnection fee updates as required by  
the Act. The complete policy is available  
at https://ww5.cityofpasadena.net/water-
and-power/sb-998-the-water-shutoff-
protection-act/

RPS procurement requirement has increased from 50 percent to 60 
percent of retail load by 2030, with a planning goal of zero emissions 
by 2045. PWP’s 2018 Power Integrated Resource Plan ("IRP"), which 
is one of the earliest developed in California that is based on the more 
aggressive target, ensures that the utility is well-positioned to achieve 
full compliance. PWP achieved 37.5 percent RPS at the close of Calendar 
Year (“CY”) 2019, which is expected to increase to 40 percent by the end 
of CY 2020. Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) emissions were also reduced by 
over 50 percent compared to 1990 levels, as defined in the IRP. 

Renewable  
Resources

In FY 2020, PWP submitted numerous comments to the CEC on RPS 
Amendment regulations to address changes in  compliance requirements. 
PWP worked closely with the CEC to highlight specific concerns which 
were later addressed in the recently approved regulations.
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MARENGO CHARGING PLAzA OPENS
With the November 2019 opening of the Marengo Charging 
Plaza, Pasadena is now the official home to one of the largest 
public Electric Vehicle ("EV") fast charging locations in the 
United States. A project developed in collaboration with Tesla, 
the Marengo Charging Plaza features 24 Tesla Superchargers 
and 20 City-owned Universal Fast Chargers in one convenient 
location that supports all fast-charging standards.   
      
In 2018, the City was approached by Tesla about the possibility 
of installing its chargers in Pasadena to create a needed 
network facility for its customers along the 210 Freeway. At the 
time, plans to expand EV charging infrastructure in Pasadena 
were already well underway and PWP was actively evaluating 
locations for potential new infrastructure projects to encourage 
more widespread EV adoption. In March, 2019, the City Council 
approved a project in partnership with Tesla for the installation 
of 24 Tesla fast chargers at the City-owned parking garage at 
155 E. Green Street, near Pasadena’s Civic Center. The scope 
also included an additional 20 universal chargers for community 
use. The public-private partnership has multiple benefits for 
the City and the local community. In addition to expanding 
Pasadena’s EV charging infrastructure and bolstering public 
confidence in the City’s commitment to EV technology and air 

quality, the location also benefits the 
local business community, whose retail, 
dining, and entertainment establishments 
are likely to be visited by EV drivers while 
their vehicles are charging. The facility supports Pasadena 
residents, visiting commuters, and the expanding electric 
fleet programs of shared mobility companies. Also, in addition 
to generating electric sales, the location increases garage 
utilization and enhances parking revenue for the City. 

The City’s portion of the $1.2 million project was funded by 
a combination of grants from the California Electric Vehicle 
Infrastructure Project and the Mobile Source Air Pollution 
Reduction Committee, and credits earned through the Low 
Carbon Fuel Standard Program ("LCFS"), which incentivizes the 
transportation sector to adopt cleaner fuel options. Design and 
construction of the electric infrastructure was a collaborative 
effort between Tesla and PWP and provided cost and efficiency 
benefits to both projects. PWP continues to participate in the 
LCFS Program which helps offset EV infrastructure expansion 
costs and contributes to the overall advancement of EV adoption.
  
With EV ownership continuing to grow in Pasadena, PWP plans 
to expand its charging infrastructure at Marengo Plaza and at 
several other locations in the future. 
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POwer suPPly uPDAte

With multiple pandemic-related restrictions placed on businesses since March 2020, 
electric utilities experienced unprecedented challenges forecasting daily energy load for 
their services areas.  As a California Independent System Operator Load Serving Entity, PWP 
schedules electricity and natural gas daily based on forecasted need. The uncertainty created 
by fluctuating business closures, reopening schedules, modified hours, and varied operating 
restrictions required PWP to remain flexible. Forecasts were adjusted as information became 
available, with energy purchases and sales driven by changing consumption patterns. Historical 
data is tracked and used in forecasting models to continually improve accuracy.  

MARENGO CHARGING PLAzA:  

A WIN FOR PASADENA
• Expands charging infrastructure to encourage local EV adoption.
• Reduces GHG emissions and supports environmental goals.
• Supports the local business community.
• Enhances Pasadena’s image as a sustainable city.
• Generates new electric and parking revenue.
• Supports a long-term strategy to expand electrification to other sectors.

• Brings new services to Pasadena. 

EV-RELATED REBATES 
pwp provided attractive incentives in 
FY 2020 to encourage EV adoption.

 
Residential eV  $108,250
Rebates 

Residential eV  $  32,896
Charger Rebates

Commercial eV  $397,500
Charger Rebates
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As a long-time member of the American Public Power Association (“APPA”), PWP was honored to 
receive APPA’s E.F. Scattergood System Achievement Award in recognition of its ongoing efforts to 
adopt and expand transportation electrification in Pasadena. Since launching the “Power Up Pasadena” 

campaign in 2018, which also won a Silver Stevie® Award in 2019 for Marketing Campaign of the Year, PWP has been actively 
promoting EV technology in the community. As a member of the City's Electric Transportation Task Force, PWP focuses on EV 
adoption and expansion through concentrated planning strategies, including programs that incentivize EV purchases and  
leases. These ongoing efforts have resulted in Pasadena being home to the largest percentage of registered EVs of any 
Southern California utility. PWP is also evaluating the feasibility of expanding electrification to other sectors such as buildings. 

PWP’s Transportation Electrification Efforts Receive National Award

LOCATION PUBLIC CHARGING CITY FLEET CHARGING PROjECT STATUS

New and Upcoming Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Projects in Pasadena

Other public locations are also being evaluated for future installation projects. 

24 Tesla Superchargers
20 Universal Fast Chargers

1 DC Fast Charger
5 Level 2 Chargers

0

TBD

0

TBD

2 Fast Chargers and 55
Level 2 Chargers

0

0

0

0

0

Complete

Complete

Complete - expansion
due 2021

Planning Phase

Planning Phase

Planning Phase

Planning Phase

TBD

CiTy yARdS

MARenGO
CHARGinG PLAzA

deL MAR STATiOn

CiTy FiRe STATiOnS

PLAyHOuSe PARK

ARROyO PARKinG
CHARGinG dePOT

CiTy COMMuniTy
CenTeRS

20 Tesla Superchargers
and 6 Universal Fast Chargers
Capacity for future expansion
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Power Turbine  
Refurbishment Project
Following a comprehensive evaluation, cost analysis, and bid  
process, major contracts were awarded in FY 2020 to refurbish a 
power plant gas turbine that has been out of service since 2012 due 
to a mechanical failure. Gas Turbine ("GT")-2 was commissioned in 1975 
with identical unit GT-1 as part of the "new" Glenarm Power Plant, an 
expansion of the now-retired Broadway location, and the official location of 
today’s plant. The units represent Pasadena’s first gas turbines, which were 
considered state-of-the-art at the time and added significant capacity to the 
existing steam plant. The $20.4 million project also includes a control system 
retrofit for both GT-1 and GT-2, which will replace the outdated electromechanical 
control system in each unit with a modern Primary Logic Controller-based system.  
Once completed, the project will restore 22 MW of local generation and greatly improve 
system reliability. The Pasadena Power Plant has been in operation since 1906.

 

POwer DistributiOn AnD DeliVery 
PWP’s highly reliable electric service is the result of focused planning that includes regular distribution system maintenance 
and upgrades, proactive capital and technology investments, efficient engineering and construction practices, superior 
outage management and troubleshooting, and a highly experienced team of engineering, operations, and customer services 
professionals committed to excellence.  

In FY 2020, PWP continued with ongoing maintenance and improvement of the electric system, including replacement of 
transformers, circuit breakers, distribution switches, underground cable, vaults, and power poles. Progress was also made  
on updates to the Power Delivery Master Plan, a comprehensive planning guide that will define operational methods and drive 
power-related capital improvements for the next 20 years. The updates are being developed in collaboration with community 
stakeholders, whose interest and insight in improving and expanding the distribution system, minimizing service failures, and 
advancing the adoption of emerging technologies such as EVs will ensure that the community's goals and expectations are 
represented. The new Master Plan is expected to be completed by the middle of CY 2021.      
   
   

POWER DELIVERY - HIGHLIGHTS
•  Designed and installed the Marengo Charging Plaza in collaboration with Tesla, and  
 provided ongoing support for EV-related installations at new locations in Pasadena.

•  Installed 2.5 circuit miles of new 34.5 KV sub-transmission line between two substations  
    to support reliability. 

•  Replaced 114 transformers, 49 switches, over 15 miles of underground and overhead 
    conductors, and 146 power poles to ensure optimal system performance.

•  Added full SCADA remote control and protection upgrades for two sub-transmission 
   lines to better protect against failures and improve situational awareness. 

•  Upgraded the Automatic Transfer Switch that provides service to the Rose Bowl  
   to improve reliability.

•  Provided new or upgraded electric service to approximately  
    700 residential and commercial customers, and installed 30 new private property vaults.
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Wildfire Mitigation Plan Approved 
To ensure the safety of Pasadena’s citizens as well as mitigate the financial risk of wildfire catastrophe caused by power lines, 
PWP has completed a Wildfire Mitigation ("Plan") in compliance with Public Utilities Code 8387. The comprehensive Plan, which 
was developed in cooperation with the City of Pasadena Fire Department and approved by the City Council in November 2019 
focuses on three objectives to mitigate the threat of wildfires. Specifically, minimizing sources of ignition, improving resiliency 
of the electric grid, and conducting ongoing evaluations of effectiveness. By assessing and improving the condition of physical 
assets, enhancing operating criteria through best practices, conducting ongoing training, adopting the latest industry standards, 
and performing regular effectiveness assessments, vulnerabilities and risks 
in equipment and processes can be identified and corrected before they 
become problems. 

With the size and frequency of California wildfires increasing, it is critical  
that electric utilities take proactive measures to mitigate the threat of 
industry-related wildfires. PWP is on track to complete the first annual 
update to the Plan by the end of CY 2020. 

WILDFIRE MITIGATION PLAN
• minimizes the sources of ignition

• improves resiliency of the electric grid

• Provides an ongoing assessment 
 of effectiveness

ExCELLENCE IN SAFETY  
AND RELIABILITY
PWP maintained the APPA’s prestigious Reliable 
Public Provider (RP3) Platinum designation for 
continuously delivering the highest degree of 
safe and reliable electric service. 
  

PWP also complies with all applicable North American Electric 
Reliability Corporation and Western Electricity Coordinating 
Council standards and requirements.   
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After a comprehensive two-year planning and development process that included the participation of 
community stakeholders, PWP completed the Water System and Resources Plan (“WSRP”), which will 
be presented to the City Council for approval in early CY 2021. An extensive document that combines the 
2002 Water Distribution System Master Plan and the 2011 Water Integrated Resource Plan, the WSRP 
will drive PWP’s long-term capital and resource planning for the next 25 years. The guide is focused on 
improving the availability and management of local water supply, and includes water conservation goals 
that are 10 percent more aggressive than state requirements. The WSRP also addresses Pasadena’s aging 
water distribution system and prioritizes replacement and rehabilitation of century-old pipelines, storage 

facilities, pumps, and other infrastructure. 

In order to understand the perspectives of future generations, 
PWP engaged young stakeholders in the WSRP development 
process. Local students were invited to attend planning 
meetings and encouraged to share ideas on a range of  
water-related topics. 

WSRP GOALS
•  maximize Local Supply
•  lower the Overall Cost of Water
•  improve emergency Protection

wAter suPPly, DistributiOn,  
AnD MAnAGeMent
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distribution • Completed a major water main replacement project that improves the reliability of water transmission 
    between the east and west sides of Pasadena and significantly reduces system failures.   
• Completed construction of the Arroyo Booster Station replacement which will improve system
    operating capability and reliability. 

• Recovered over 2 million gallons of water using innovative NO-DES unidirectional flushing technology. 

Storage • Installed isolation valves and drained two century-old reservoirs as part of the Sunset Reservoir 
    Replacement Project

• Completed preliminary design work for the new “Sunset Complex,” which will feature multiple reservoirs,  
    new pump stations, water treatment and disinfection facilities, and landscape enhancements.  

Supply • Developed an alternative water supply plan for the Non-potable Water Project that focuses on local 
    well and tunnel water.

• Rehabilitated Windsor Well and converted it to an irrigation source which will serve multiple  
    local public locations. 

Resources • Performed ongoing environmental work for the Arroyo Seco Canyon Project, a multi-benefit habitat 
    restoration plan for the Arroyo Seco watershed.

• Evaluated aging and inoperable wells for rehabilitation or abandonment.

Water System – Highlights 

In FY 2020, PWP performed regular maintenance and made improvements to the water system, and progressed on several 
ongoing water storage, supply, and resource projects. 
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SHELDON RESERVOIR  
DEMONSTRATION LANDSCAPE
A Setting for Regenerative and  
Sustainable Landscaping
After a year-long planning, development, and  
construction process, the Sheldon Reservoir 
Demonstration Landscape ("Sheldon") has been 
completed and is now part of the Pasadena 
community. The latest in a series of projects that 
focus on enhancing the appearance of City water 
facilities, the new 10,000 square foot landscape  
is located near the Sheldon Reservoir at the 
intersection of North Arroyo Boulevard and Coniston 
Road. Featuring drought tolerant plantings, water-
efficient drip irrigation, and innovative landscaping 
techniques that optimize water use and soil health, 
Sheldon is a setting for regenerative and sustainable 
landscaping that provides the community with 
transformative landscaping ideas that save water.

The project received enthusiastic community  
support, including the participation of dedicated 
neighborhood volunteers who assisted PWP 

staff with preparing the area for planting. In 
addition to brush clearing, mulching, and planting, 
participants also helped to construct the Hügels, a 
permaculture feature of the innovative Hügelkultur 
water conservation technique which focuses on 
enhancing soil moisture retention and landscape 
area cooling. The project also included the 
participation of Outward Bound Adventures (“OBA”), 
a conservation-focused youth organization that 
provides opportunities for high school students 
to participate directly in community projects. 
OBA members assisted with the installation of 
the water-efficient drip irrigation system which 
provided valuable work experience for Pasadena’s 
young citizens. Sidewalk construction and tree 
care guidance were provided by the Public Works 
Department and Forestry Division.  

Sheldon is ninth Demonstration Landscape 
constructed in Pasadena, following locations at 
Friends in Deed on Washington Boulevard, Jackie 
Robinson Post Office on North Mentor Avenue, a 
city parcel at Washington Boulevard and Marengo 

Avenue, and five Pasadena Fire Stations. The 
tenth is currently under construction at Thomas 

Reservoir and PWP continues to identify new 
locations for future projects. Also, PWP 

recently received a grant from the Federal 
Bureau of Reclamation which will be used 

to design and install Hügels at other 
locations in Pasadena. Projects in the 

Arroyo Seco area and the Sierra 
Madre Median are being planned. 
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Customer information System  
Replacement Project
A major ongoing project to replace PWP’s 
Customer Information System (“CIS”) made 
significant progress during the year. As part of  
the City’s key initiatives to improve automation  
and operational technology, the project was 
initiated in 2017 to replace the current outdated 
CIS with a new modern solution that integrates 
billing functionality with robust self-service 
features for an improved customer experience. 
PWP focused on identifying a solution that is 
highly customizable, can be integrated with 
other systems, with strong audit and workflow 
capabilities for superior financial control and 
security. The ideal system would also provide 
the platform from which to launch operational 
technologies such as interactive smart meters, 
early water leak detection, remote service 
activation and deactivation, and support innovative 
forms of business such as electrification and  
co-generation. 

After conducting a comprehensive Needs  
Assessment followed by an extensive  
multi-department vendor selection process,  
PWP awarded a contract to Oracle in FY 2019  
for its Customer to Meter cloud-hosted solution, 
which will help the City achieve its business 

objectives, long-term goals, and future technology 
advancements. Additional contracts were awarded 
in FY 2020 for System Implementation services, 
Electronic Bill Payment and Presentment services, 
a Customer Self Service portal, and Organization 
Change Management services.  

Despite pandemic-related challenges that delayed 
contract negotiations and staffing recruitment  
activities, the Analysis phase of the project was 
completed during the year. This will be followed 
by the design-build process, system testing, and 
initial user training in FY 2021. The estimated 
$27.5 million project is expected to be fully 
implemented in the fall of 2021. 

TechnOlOGy AnD new serVices

CIS PROjECT IN PHASES:
 
needs Assessment 2017

RFP issued 2018

Contracts Awarded 2018-2019

implementation Begins 2020

Deployment (Go-live) 2021 2021
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Due to mandated lockdowns and social distancing protocols, in-person outreach and programs  
were largely suspended from mid-March 2020 through the end of the fiscal year. However, while 
pandemic-related challenges impacted PWP’s traditional outreach methods, alternative mediums  
were used to facilitate communication and information sharing. 

The Home improvement Program, which provides free energy and water-saving measures installed 
by PWP-approved contractors, continued throughout the fiscal year. While in-person services were 
unavailable between mid-March through the end of May, virtual evaluations were offered as an option 
during that time. On-site evaluations resumed in June 2020 and are conducted under strict safety 
guidelines to ensure the health and safety of field staff and customers.     

Other ongoing service offerings, including the Water & energy direct installation Program ("WediP"), were 
also curtailed or temporarily suspended due to the pandemic. WeDIP has also since resumed with 

enhanced safety measures applied to all on-site visits.  

PWP also launched six new residential all-electric appliance rebates to encourage customers to 
replace gas appliances with electric models. Electrification of appliances reduces overall GHG 

emissions, improves indoor and outdoor air quality, and provides additional electric revenues 
that help maintain affordable rates for all PWP customers.  

Since so many PWP customers are now working from home and using more electricity, 
PWP enhanced its popular Home energy Report with helpful no-to-low-cost energy-saving 

tips that help reduce energy usage and save money. The reports are mailed quarterly to 
every PWP electric customer and detail personal energy usage as compared to other 

customers in similar locations and dwellings.  

To help facilitate the bill assistance process, customers may now apply online for 
the Low-income electric utility Assistance Program (euAP), Age or disability 

qualification (CAReS), and Age or disability qualification (CAReSPlus). 
For more information, visit https://ww5.cityofpasadena.net/water-and-power/

billassistance/ 

PrOGrAMs, serVices, AnD Public OutreAch



2121

Connecting with the Community Virtually  
As temporary alternatives to some of PWP's popular array of events, workshops, and educational programs, coordinators   
identified quality virtual options that would invite similar interest and public engagement. In addition to two well-attended  
Spray-to-drip landscaping workshops, PWP and the Pasadena Public Library offered workshops on soil health and techniques 
for WaterWise planting as part of the Pasadena Grows series. 

With area schools closed for almost half of the fiscal year, educational programs were also put on hold. The Green Living 
Program for 2nd graders was resumed virtually in the spring of 2020 and continued through the remainder of the school 
year.  Also, the conservation-focused annual Scholarship and Art Contest invited students to submit entries electronically and 
concluded with virtual award presentations. 

In January 2021, PWP will begin offering the popular Children investigate the environment and LivingWise programs virtually 
and is also developing a webpage with interactive, utility-specific content and educational tools.  During these challenging times 
and always, PWP is committed to providing Pasadena’s teachers and students with quality learning resources that encourage 
sustainable water and energy management practices.

ONLINE TOOLS CAN HELP YOU START SAVING TODAY
Answering just a few questions online can show you where you’re using the most energy and guide 
you to tips for reducing use.

Whether you live in a single-family home, an apartment, or a condo, there are plenty of ways to  
save that you may not know about—now more than ever we’d like to help you keep your costs down.

Take the survey today at pwp.opower.com/ei/x/home-energy-analysis

USE POWER STRIPS TO EASILY TURN OFF ELECTRONICS
Why?

Many computers, televisions, and other devices draw power even when they are turned off. Since plugs 
to these devices can be tough to remove from the outlet and reconnect, use a power strip. With a flip of 
a switch, you can easily cut off power to multiple devices at once - saving time, energy, and money. 
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
CLAconnect.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

To the Honorable City Council 
City of Pasadena 
Pasadena, California 

Report on the Financial Statements  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Water, and Light and Power, Enterprise 
Funds of the Pasadena Water and Power Department (the Department), of the City of Pasadena, California, 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Department’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller Generally of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the Water, and Light and Power, Enterprise Funds of the Pasadena Water 
and Power Department, of the City of Pasadena, California, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes 
in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1, the basic financial statements of the Department are intended to present the net 
position, and the changes in net position and cash flows, of only that portion of the Water, and Light and 
Power, Enterprise funds of the City of Pasadena that is attributable to the transactions of the Water and 
Power Department. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of 
Pasadena, as of June 30, 2020, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, the schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios and schedule of 
plan contributions for the miscellaneous plan, and the schedule of changes in the net OPEB liability and 
related ratios, and the schedule of OPEB plan contributions, identified as Required Supplementary 
Information (RSI) in the accompanying table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements of the Water, 
and Light and Power, Enterprise Funds of the Pasadena Water and Power Department, of the City of 
Pasadena, California. The introductory section and statistical section are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The introductory and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
March 5, 2021, on our consideration of the Department’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Department’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 

 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Irvine, California 
March 5, 2021  
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CiTy OF PASAdenA

POWeR enTeRPRiSe Fund
Management’s discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2020

The Management of Pasadena Water and Power (“PWP”), a 
department of the City of Pasadena (“City”) and also referred 
to in this report as “Utility,” offers the following overview 
and analysis of the basic financial statements of the Power 
Enterprise Fund (“Power Fund”) for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2020. We encourage readers to utilize the information 
presented here in conjunction with the accompanying basic 
financial statements. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, 
are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

Management has elected to provide not only highlights to the 
basic financial statements, but also vital statistics and other 
relevant data and information associated with the Power 
Fund. Because the Utility is a business-type activity of the 
City of Pasadena, an enterprise fund is used to account for its 
power utility operations. Information on City-wide financial 
results is available in the City of Pasadena Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report as of June 30, 2020.

The Power Fund’s basic financial statements are comprised  
of two components: 1) financial statements, and 2) notes  
to the financial statements. Included as part of the financial 
statements are the Statement of Net position; Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position; and 
Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net position presents information on all of 
the Power Fund’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference 
reported as “net position.” Over time, increases or decreases 
in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether 
the financial position of the Power Fund is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
position details the changes in the Power Fund’s net position 
during the past fiscal year. Operating results are recorded 
under the accrual basis of accounting in which all changes 
in net position are reported as underlying events occur, 
regardless of the timing of cash flows. Thus, the statement 
reflects revenues and expenses for some items that will 
generate cash flows during future fiscal periods; i.e. accounts 

payable 
and 
accounts 
receivable.

The Statement of 
Cash Flows presents 
the flow of cash 
and cash equivalents 
during the last fiscal year, 
including certain restricted amounts.

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements provides additional 
information that is essential to the full understanding of the 
data provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights

At the end of FY 2020, the Power Fund’s net position, which 
represents assets and deferred outflows, exceeded its 
liabilities and deferred inflows by about $601.9 million. The 
net position balance includes $281.1 million of the Power 
Fund’s investment in capital assets, less any related liabilities 
used to acquire those assets, that are still outstanding and 
$117.6 million of restricted resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining 
balance of $203.2 million represents unrestricted uses in 
accordance with finance-related legal requirements. 

The total retail electric energy sold was about 1.0 million 
megawatt hours, a decrease of approximately 2.8% compared 
to the prior fiscal year mainly due to weather conditions, 
continued conservation as well as the impacts of the “safer 
at home” order as a result of COVID-19 pandemic. Total 
operating revenues were approximately $217.9 million, a 
decrease of about $0.2 million or 0.1% compared to FY 2019, 
while total operating expenses were about $188.0 million, an 
increase of approximately $0.7 million or 0.4%.  Investment 
earnings were approximately $8.4 million, a decrease of about 
$4.5 million or 34.9% compared to FY 2019 mostly due to the 
exceptionally strong market performance last year. About 
$17.3 million was transferred out of the Power Fund to the 
General Fund of the City of Pasadena.
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Financial Analysis

The Condensed Statement of Net Position for the Power Fund 
is as follows: 

(in thousands) FY 2020 FY 2019 Change

Assets 

Current assets  $305,553  272,703  32,850 

Noncurrent assets  95,698  111,594  (15,896)

Capital assets  514,892  517,491  (2,599)

Total assets 916,143 901,788  14,355 

Deferred outflows  10,149  13,388  (3,239)

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 33,586  30,607  2,979 

Noncurrent liabilities 288,176  300,210  (12,034)

Total liabilities 321,762 330,817  (9,055)

Deferred inflows 2,595  2,969  (374)

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 281,147 272,159  8,988 

Restricted:

  Debt service 15,563 18,225  (2,662)

  Contribution to General Fund 18,000 17,315  685 

  Stranded investments 77,427 89,252  (11,825)

  Other purposes 6,615 5,188  1,427 

Unrestricted 203,183 179,251  23,932 

Total net position  $601,935  581,390  20,545 

 
As of June 30, 2020, the Power Fund’s total assets increased by 
approximately $14.4 million or 1.6%, primarily due to increases 
of about $26.0 million in unrestricted cash and investments and 
$6.0 million in accounts receivable, inventories and due from 
Underground Utility Surtax Fund to fund underground electrical 
conduit projects.  These increases were partially offset by 
approximate decreases of $7.8 million in other restricted cash 
and investments resulting mainly from drawdown from the 
Stranded Investment Reserve (“SIR”) Fund and transfer of 
excess parity electric reserves to money market; $2.6 million 
in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, due to asset 
retirement and depreciation; $6.0 million in notes receivable 
from Intermountain Power Authority (“IPA”); and $1.2 million 
in prepayments and advances.  Deferred outflow of resources 
decreased by about $3.2 million or 24.2% compared to the prior 
fiscal year due to decreases of $3.0 million in deferred outflows 
related to net pension liability associated with Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 – Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions (“GASB 68”) and $1.3 
million in deferred charges from bond refunding due to 
issuance of 2019A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds. These 

decreases were offset by an increase of $1.1 million in deferred 
outflows related to net other post-employment benefits 
(“OPEB”) liability.

Major capital projects that occurred during FY 2020 include 
awarding of contracts for refurbishment of Gas Turbine 2 
(“GT-2”), which has been out of service since 2012; opening 
of Marengo Charging Plaza in November 2019, which is one 
of the largest public electric vehicle fast charging locations in 
the United States; upgrade of the Automatic Transfer Switch, 
providing improved reliability of service to the Rose Bowl; 
addition of full SCADA remote control and protection upgrades 
for two sub-transmission lines to better protect against failures 
and improve situational awareness; and approval of the Wildfire 
Mitigation Plan in November 2019, focusing on minimizing 
sources of ignition, improving resiliency of the electric grid and 
conducting ongoing evaluations of effectiveness.  

As of June 30, 2020, the Stranded Investment Reserve (“SIR”) 
balance was about $77.4 million. Of this amount, approximately 
$60.8 million was restricted cash and investment available to 
cover stranded costs resulting from the uncertainty associated 
with long-term commitments for energy from Intermountain 
Power Project (“IPP”). The remaining $16.6 million represents 
the balance of the Intermountain Power Authority (“IPA”) 
subordinate notes, net of premium/discount. In FY 2020, PWP 
received approximately $0.1 million in interest income from IPA 
relating to the subordinate notes.  $7.0 million was withdrawn 
from the SIR based on a 3-year drawdown plan approved in 
September 2018 to offset the stranded costs associated with the 
Intermountain Power Plant and Magnolia Power Plant projects, 
thereby limiting potential increases in power costs to customers. 

Total liabilities as of June 30, 2020 was approximately $321.8 
million which was decreased by nearly $9.1 million or 2.7% 
compared to the prior fiscal year. This was mainly due to 
decrease of $15.3 million in revenue bonds payable due to debt 
service payments made and an issuance of 2019A Electric 
Revenue/Refunding Bonds in FY 2020.  This decrease was 
offset by approximate increases of $0.5 million in accounts 
payable and deposits, $2.1 million in deferred revenues related 
to capital projects; $1.4 million in net pension liability and $2.2 
in net OPEB liability. Deferred inflow of resources decreased 
by about $0.4 million or 12.6% compared to the prior fiscal 
year mainly due to decrease of $1.1 million in deferred inflows 
related to net pension liability and was offset by an increase of 
$0.8 million in deferred inflows related to net OPEB liability.

The net position at the end of the year was about $601.9 million, 
an increase of approximately $20.5 million or 3.5% compared to 
the prior fiscal year, due to the net income from FY 2020.

  FINANCIAL SECTION 

C I T Y  O F  PA S A D E N A  |  P O W e r  e n t e r P r i S e  f u n d  |  M a n a g e m e n t ’ s  D i s c u s s i o n  a n d  A n a l y s i s  |  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 2 0



Pasadena Water and Power 2020  Annual Report28

C I T Y  O F  PA S A D E N A  |  P O W e r  e n t e r P r i S e  f u n d  |  M a n a g e m e n t ’ s  D i s c u s s i o n  a n d  A n a l y s i s  |  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 2 0

Graph 1

Graph 2

Wholesale  
Sales 

2%

ISO-PTO 
7%

Non Operating  
& Misc Others 

9%

Residential 
29%

Commercial & Industrial 
52%

Municipal  
& Others 

1%

SOuRCeS OF FundS

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position for the Power Fund is as follows:  

(in thousands) FY 2020 FY 2019 Change

Operating revenues:

  Retail  $192,209 180,028  12,181 

  Wholesale 5,337 10,714  (5,377)

  Miscellaneous/other revenues 20,327 27,313  (6,986)

Total operating revenues 217,873 218,055  (182)

Operating expenses: 

  Purchased power and fuel - retail 94,736 97,113  (2,377)

  Purchased power and fuel - wholesale 

  Other operating expenses 28,445 28,023  422 

  Administrative and general 29,798 24,055  5,743 

  Depreciation 31,955 31,702  253 

Total operating expenses 187,993 187,337  656 

Operating income 29,880 30,718  (838)

  Non-operating revenues (expenses): 

  Investment earnings (incl. net change 

   in fair market of investments) 8,412 12,925  (4,513)

  Other non-operating revenues (expenses) 1,363 656  707 

  Interest expense  (9,129)  (9,538)  409 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)  646  4,043  (3,397)

Income before contributions and transfers  30,526  34,761  (4,235)

Contributions and transfers: 

  Capital contributions  1,897  1,560  337 

  Transfers in from City of Pasadena  5,437  4,194  1,243 

  Transfers out to City of Pasadena (17,315) (17,609) 294

Changes in net position 20,545 22,906  (2,361)

Net position, beginning of year 581,390  558,484  22,906 

Net position, end of year  $601,935  581,390  20,545 

The Power Fund’s operating revenues were about $217.9 
million, a decrease of approximately $0.2 million or 0.1% 
compared to the prior fiscal year. Despite of a decrease of 
2.8% in retail sales, retail revenues increased by about $12.2 
million or 6.8% mainly due to the approved implementation 
of a new monthly fixed distribution charge (“Grid Access 
Charge”) and an approved Power Cost Adjustment (“PCA”) 

rate increase. Total retail revenues were approximately 
$192.2 million, of which about $122.8 million was related to 
commercial and industrial, nearly $66.8 million related to 
residential and approximately $2.6 million related to street 
lights and traffic signals and other unbilled retail revenues.  
Wholesale energy revenues were about $5.3 million, a 
decrease of approximately $5.4 million or 50.2% from prior 
fiscal year due to a decrease in wholesale activities with 
the California Independent System Operator (“CAISO”).  
Participating Transmission Owners (“PTO”) revenues and 
other related transmission revenues received from CAISO 
to cover PWP’s Transmission Revenue Requirement (“TRR”) 
amounted to approximately $15.8 million, an increase of 
about $0.9 million or 5.9% compared to the prior fiscal year. 
Miscellaneous and other revenues decreased by about $7.0 
million or 25.6% compared to prior fiscal year, largely due 
to decrease in sales of allocated cap and trade emissions 
allowances.

Investment earnings, including the net change in fair value 
of investments, were approximately $8.4 million, a decrease 
of about $4.5 million or 34.9% compared to the prior fiscal 
year during which exception market performance occurred.  
Other non-operating revenues, net of non-operating expenses, 
increased by nearly $0.7 million mainly due to a reduction of 
loss in retirement of capital assets offset with a decrease in 
revenues from reimbursement related to Southern California 
Gas Company for the Home Improvement Program in FY 2020.

Total capital contributions received from developers were 
approximately $1.9 million, an increase of about $0.3 million 
or 21.6% compared to the prior fiscal year. PWP also received 
$5.4 million from the Underground Utility Surtax Fund to fund 
underground electrical conduit projects.  This was an increase 
of about $1.2 million or 29.6% compared to the prior fiscal year. 

and others                                                                          3,059           6,444       (3,385)
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Total operating expenses amounted to about $188.0 million, 
a slight increase of approximately $0.7 million or 0.4% over 
the prior fiscal year mainly due to increases in administrative 
and general expense, overhead and depreciation.  These 
increases were offset by decreases in purchased power, fuel 
and gas expenses. Total purchased power expense was about 
$92.1 million, which represented 39% of the $235.0 million 
in total uses of Power funds. Administrative and general 
expense amounted to about $29.8 million, an increase of 
approximately $5.7 million or 23.9% over the prior fiscal year 
mainly due to increases in payroll related expenses such 
as Public Employees’ Retirement System (“PERS”), general 
liability, pension, OPEB, medical, and other benefits; material 
overhead; and bad debt expense.

Depreciation expense was about $32.0 million, a minor 
increase of about $0.3 million or 0.8% compared to the prior 
fiscal year.  Total interest expense was about $9.1 million, a 
decrease of approximately $0.4 million or 4.3% because of 
reduced outstanding balance of long-term debt and issuance 
of the 2019A Electric Refunding/Revenue Bonds.

PWP transferred approximately $17.3 million to the City 
General Fund during FY 2020 in compliance with the City 
Charter’s requirement. It is a slight decrease of about $0.3 
million or 1.7% compared to the prior fiscal year due to the 
reduction in retail sales.  The transfer rate for FY 2020 was 
based on 10% of the gross operating revenues from prior year 
retail sales.

Capital Assets 

As of June 30, 2020, the Power Fund’s net utility plant and 
equipment; which includes investments in production, 
transmission, distribution facilities, and general items such 

as equipment and furniture; was about $514.9 million. The 
decrease of approximately $2.6 million or 0.5% over the 
prior fiscal year was due to an increase in accumulated 
depreciation offset with an increase in capital assets 
related to distribution system expansion, installation of 
low/high voltage electric services, electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure, vault replacement, transmission, customer 
information system replacement, machinery, and equipment.

Capital Assets (in thousands)  FY 2020 FY 2019

Land  $     3,020  3,020 

Buildings and improvements  50,445  50,148 

Utility lines, machinery, and equipment  867,181  862,298 

Construction work in progress  35,924  21,260 

Accumulated depreciation  (441,678)  (419,235)

Net capital assets  $514,892  517,491 

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt was about $206.9 million at the end of FY 
2020. This represents a decrease of approximately $14.1 
million or 6.4% compared to the prior fiscal year. The current 
long-term debt due within a year was about $13.4 million 
while noncurrent long-term debt was approximately $193.5 
million. The debt is backed by the revenues of the Utility. 
PWP’s Power Enterprise Fund maintained an “AA” rating from 
Standard and Poor’s and Fitch.

Outstanding Long-Term Debt (in thousands) FY 2020 FY 2019

2009 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds  $             -    15,885 

2010A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds  5,000  9,810 

2012A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds  4,405  4,955 

2013A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds  74,335  75,985 

2016A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds  111,620  114,355 

2019A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds  11,575  -   

Total long-term debt  206,935  220,990 

Current long-term debt  13,380  13,005 

Noncurrent long-term debt    $193,555       207,985 

 
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview 
of the Power Fund’s finances. Questions concerning information 
provided in this report should be addressed to the Assistant 
General Manager, Finance, Administration and Customer  
Service Business Unit, Pasadena Water and Power, 150 S. Los 
Robles Avenue, Suite 200, Pasadena, California 91101. 
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CiTy OF PASAdenA

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND
Management’s discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2020

The Management of Pasadena Water and Power (“PWP”), a 
department of the City of Pasadena (“City”) and also referred 
to in this report as “Utility,” offers the following overview 
and analysis of the basic financial statements of the Water 
Enterprise Fund (“Water Fund”) for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2020.  We encourage readers to utilize the information 
presented here in conjunction with the accompanying basic 
financial statements. Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts 
are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

Management has elected to provide not only highlights to the 
basic financial statements, but also vital statistics and other 
relevant data and information associated with the Water Fund. 
Because the Utility is a business-type activity of the City of 
Pasadena, an enterprise fund is used to account for its water 
utility operations. Information on City-wide financial results 
is available in the City of Pasadena Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report as of June 30, 2020.

The Water Fund’s basic financial statements are comprised 
of two components: 1) financial statements, and 

2) notes to the financial statements. Included 
as part of the financial statements are the 

Statement of Net position; Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 

position; and Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents 
information on all of the Water Fund’s 

assets and deferred outflows of 
resources and liabilities and 

deferred inflows of resources, 
with the difference reported 

as “net position.” Over time, 
increases or decreases in 

net position may serve 
as a useful indicator of 

whether 
the 
financial 
position of 
the Water Fund 
is improving or 
deteriorating.

The Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position details the changes in the Water Fund’s 
net position during the past fiscal year. Operating results are 
recorded under the accrual basis of accounting in which all 
changes in net position are reported as underlying events occur, 
regardless of the timing of cash flows. Thus, the statement 
reflects revenues and expenses for some items that will 
generate cash flows during future fiscal periods; i.e. accounts 
payable and accounts receivable.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the flow of cash and 
cash equivalents during the last fiscal year, including certain 
restricted amounts.

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements provides additional 
information that is essential to the full understanding of the 
data provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights

At the end of FY 2020, the Water Fund’s net position, which 
represents assets and deferred outflows, exceeded its 
liabilities and deferred inflows by approximately $190.0 
million. The net position balance includes $153.1 million 
of the Water Fund’s investment in capital assets, less any 
related liabilities used to acquire those assets, that are still 
outstanding and $7.7 million of restricted resources that are 
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The 
remaining balance of $29.2 million represents unrestricted 
uses in accordance with finance-related legal requirements.
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The total retail water sold was about 11.3 million billing units, 
a slight decrease of about 0.2 million billing units or 1.9% 
compared to the prior fiscal year mainly due to continued 
conservation and impacts from the “safer at home” order as 
a result of COVID-19 pandemic.  A billing unit is equivalent 
to 748 gallons of water.  Total operating revenues were 
approximately $62.5 million, an increase of about $2.3 million 
or 3.8% compared to the prior fiscal year.  Total operating 
expenses were approximately $56.1 million, an increase 
of about $2.4 million or 4.5% compared to the prior fiscal 
year.  Investment earnings were approximately $1.4 million, a 
decrease of about $0.7 million or 31.3% compared to FY 2019 
due to the exceptionally strong market performance during the 
prior year. Approximately $1.9 million was reimbursed by the 
Water Fund to the General Fund for cost of services provided. 

Financial Analysis

The Condensed Statement of Net Position for the Water Fund 
is as follows: 

 
(in thousands) FY 2020 FY 2019 Change

Assets 

Current assets  $61,546 65,831  (4,285)

Noncurrent assets 6,146 6,199  (53)

Capital assets 212,863 200,338  12,525 

Total assets 280,555 272,368 8,187

Deferred outflows 4,192 5,059  (867)

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 13,075 11,537  1,538 

Noncurrent liabilities 80,583 81,987  (1,404)

Total liabilities 93,658 93,524  134 

Deferred inflows 1,138 1,057  81 

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 153,081 140,322  12,759 

Restricted:

  Debt service 6,146 6,199  (53)

  Contribution to General Fund 1,544 1,544  -   

Unrestricted 29,180 34,781  (5,601)

Total net position  $189,951 182,846  7,105 

As of June 30, 2020, the Water Fund’s total assets 
increased by nearly $8.2 million or 3.0% primarily due to 
approximate increases of $12.5 million in capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation; and $1.4 million in accounts 

receivable. These increases were offset by decreases of 
$5.6 million in unrestricted cash and investments; and $0.1 
in inventories and other restricted cash and investments.  
Deferred outflow of resources decreased by about $0.9 million 
or 17.1% compared to the prior fiscal year mainly due to a 
decrease of $1.4 million in deferred outflows related to net 
pension liability associated with Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 68 – Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions (“GASB 68”).   This decrease was offset 
by an increase of about $0.5 million in deferred outflows 
related to net other postemployment benefits (“OPEB”) liability.

Major capital projects that occurred during FY 2020 included 
completion of planning and development of the Water 
System Resource Plan; completion of the Arroyo Booster 
Station upgrades to improve system operating capability and 
reliability; completion of preliminary design work for the new 
Sunset Complex which will feature multiple reservoirs, new 
pump stations, water treatment, and disinfection facilities 
along with landscape enhancements; development of 
alternative water supply plans, including non-potable projects 
focusing on local well and tunnel water; and continued 
environmental work for the Arroyo Seco Canyon project for 
habitat restoration and ground water recharge.  

Total liabilities slightly increased by approximately $0.1 
million or 0.1% compared to the prior fiscal year. This was 
mainly due to approximate increases of $1.1 million in 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities; $0.3 million in 
unearned revenues related to capital projects; $0.3 million 
in net pension liability associated with GASB 68; and $1.1 
million in net OPEB liability. These increases were offset by 
a decrease of about $2.7 million in revenue bonds payable. 
Deferred inflow of resources increased by about $0.1 million 
or 7.7% compared to the prior fiscal year due to an increase 
of $0.4 million in deferred inflows related to net OPEB liability. 
This increase was offset with a decrease of $0.3 in deferred 
inflows related to net pension liability.  

Total net position at the end of the year was about $190.0 
million, an increase of approximately $7.1 million or 3.9% 
compared to the prior fiscal year because of the net income 
from FY 2020.

FINANCIAL SECTION  
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The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position for the Water Fund is as follows: 

The Water Fund’s operating revenues for FY 2020 increased 
by approximately $2.3 million or 3.8% compared to the prior 
fiscal year, mainly due the approved Distribution and Customer 
(“D&C”) rate increase. This increase was offset by a decrease 
of about 0.2 million billing units in retail water sales. Retail 
revenues generated from customers located inside city limits 
increased by approximately $2.0 million or 5.3%, while retail 
revenues generated from customers outside city limits 

decreased by about $0.7 million or 10.3%.  Total revenues 
from municipal, fire protection and other operating activities 
increased by approximately $1.2 million. In addition, revenue 
from the Capital Improvement Charge (“CIC”), a volumetric 
charge, decreased by nearly $0.2 million or 1.5% compared to 
FY 2019 mainly due to the decrease in retail water sales.

Investment earnings, including net change in fair market 
value of investments, were approximately $1.4 million, a 
decrease by $0.7 million or 31.3% compared to the prior 
fiscal year due to the exceptionally strong investment market 
performance last year. Capital contributions received from 
developers decreased by approximately $1.0 million or 
49.5% due to a reduction of customer driven projects.  Other 
non-operating revenues, net of non-operating expenses, 
increased by $0.5 million or 19.6% primarily due to increases 
in groundwater treatment services reimbursements from Jet 
Propulsion Laboratory (“JPL”); and various state and federal 
grant reimbursements.
 
Total sources of funds for the FY 2020 Water Fund was about 
$68.0 million, of which approximately $39.0 million or 57% 
represents retail revenues generated inside city limits, $6.4 
million or 10% represents revenues generated outside city 
limits, $11.4 million or 17% represents CIC revenue, and 
nearly $11.2 million or 16% represents other operating and 
non-operating revenues. 
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(in thousands) FY 2020 FY 2019 Change

Operating revenues:

  Sales within City limits $ 39,039  37,071  1,968 

  Sales outside City limits 6,419  7,158  (739)

  Municipal sales and fire protection 3,773  3,204  569 

  Capital improvement charge 11,384  11,557  (173)

  Miscellaneous/other revenues 1,852  1,190  662 

Total operating revenues 62,467 60,180  2,287 

Operating expenses: 

  Purchased water 21,155  20,846  309 

  Purchased power 2,611  2,422  189 

  Other operating expenses 12,319  10,541  1,778 

  Administrative and general 11,354  11,511  (157)

  Depreciation 8,695  8,379  316 

Total operating expenses 56,134 53,699  2,435 

Operating income 6,333 6,481  (148)

Non-operating revenues (expenses): 

  Investment earnings (incl. net change

   in fair market of investments) 1,435  2,089  (654)

  Other non-operating revenues (expenses) 3,080  2,576  504 

  Interest expense  (2,886)  (3,037)  151 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)  1,629  1,628  1 

Income before contributions and transfers 7,962 8,109  (147)

Contributions and transfers: 

  Capital contributions 1,037  2,055  (1,018)

  Transfers out to City of Pasadena  (1,894)  (1,894)  -   

Changes in net position 7,105 8,270  (1,165)

Net position, beginning of year 182,846  174,576  8,270 

Net position, end of year 
 
$189,951  182,846     7,105
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Total operating expenses increased by about $2.4 million or 
4.5% compared to FY 2019. Purchased water costs increased 
by about $0.3 million or 1.5% resulting from rate increases 
implemented by the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California (“MWD”) and offset by a decrease in retail water 
sales. In FY 2020, PWP purchased 18,738 acre feet from MWD 
and other utilities, a 3.4% increase compared to the prior fiscal 
year. Total purchased water expense was about $21.2 million, 
which represents 31% of the $68.0 million in total uses of 
funds. FY 2020 direct expenses related to transmission and 
distribution, sources of supply, pumping, and water treatment 
increased by about $1.8 million or 16.9% to $12.3 million. This 
represents 18% of the total uses of funds in FY 2020.  Purchased 
power costs associated with pumping water increased slightly by 
about $0.2 million or 7.8% compared to FY 2019.

Depreciation expense was about $8.7 million, an increase of 
$0.3 million or 3.8% compared to the prior fiscal year due to an 
increase in capital projects closed. Total interest expense was 
approximately $2.9 million, a decrease of about $0.2 million or 
5.0% as a result of the reduced outstanding balance of long-
term debt.

Reimbursement of cost of services provided by the General 
Fund to the Water Fund were approximately $1.9 million, 
the same as FY 2019. These reimbursements consist of 
approximately $1.5 million for the cost of services provided 
by the City and $0.4 million for maintenance services at 
Hahamongna Watershed Park.   

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2020, the Water Fund’s net utility plant and 
equipment, which includes investments in production, 
transmission, facilities-related distribution, and general items 
such as equipment and furniture, was approximately $212.9 
million, an increase of approximately $12.5 million or 6.3% over 
the prior fiscal year. The increase is primarily attributable to an 
increase in capital assets related to water distribution mains, 
boosters, meters, wells, pump stations, water treatment, 
chloramine disinfection facilities, customer information system, 
machinery, and equipment.
 

Capital Assets (in thousands) FY 2020 FY 2019

Land  $     1,577  1,578 

Buildings and improvements  18,161  18,160 

Water mains, machinery and equipment  278,086  271,168 

Construction work in progress  32,837  18,584 

Accumulated depreciation  (117,798)  (109,152)

Net capital assets  $212,863  200,338 

 
Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt was about $53.6 million at the end of FY 2020.  
This represents a decrease of approximately $2.5 million or 4.4% 
compared to the prior fiscal year. The current long-term debt due 
within a year was about $2.5 million while noncurrent long-term 
debt was approximately $51.0 million. The debt was backed 
by the revenue of the Utility. PWP’s Water Enterprise Fund 
maintained an “AA+” rating from Standard and Poor’s and Fitch. 

Outstanding Long-Term Debt (in thousands) FY 2020  FY 2019

2010A & B Water Revenue Bonds  $25,425  26,165 

2011A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds  15,065  16,275 

2017A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds  13,095  13,620 

Total long-term debt  53,585  56,060 

Current long-term debt  2,540  2,475 

Noncurrent long-term debt  $51,045  53,585 

 
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview 
of the Water Fund’s finances. Questions concerning information 
provided in this report should be addressed to the Assistant 
General Manager, Finance, Administration and Customer Service 
Business Unit, Pasadena Water and Power, 150 S. Los Robles 
Avenue, Suite 200, Pasadena, California 91101. 
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CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020

 

  Light and Power         Water  
Assets
Current assets:
  Cash and investments (note 2)  $ 251,501,968  43,076,104
  Accounts receivable, net (note 3)  25,627,795  10,100,250
  Due from other funds  1,830,851  -
  Notes receivable, restricted (notes 4 and 9) 6,583,333  -
  Inventories  19,334,971  8,025,740
  Prepaids and other assets  674,188  344,403
         Total current assets  305,553,106  61,546,497
Noncurrent restricted assets:
  Cash and investments 15,663,384  2,316
  Cash and investments - stranded investments reserve (note 9) 60,774,869  -
  Cash with fiscal agent  29  6,143,188
  Notes receivable (notes 4 and 9) 8,046,667  -
         Total noncurrent restricted assets  84,484,949  6,145,504
Other noncurrent assets:
 Advances to other funds (note 6)  330,000  -
 Deposit with Independent System Operator (ISO)  200,000  -
 Prepaid long-term assets  10,683,146  -
 Capital assets (note 5)  956,569,222  330,660,894
  Less accumulated depreciation  (441,677,531)  (117,797,894)
     Net capital assets  514,891,691  212,863,000
         Total other noncurrent assets 526,104,837  212,863,000
         Total assets  916,142,892  280,555,001
 
deferred outflows of resources
 Deferred charges - bond refunding (note 10)  710,313  198,484
 Deferred outflows related to net pension liability (note 10)  7,993,153  3,270,541
 Deferred outflows related to net OPEB liability (note 10)  1,445,934  722,954
                Total deferred outflows of resources  10,149,400  4,191,979
 
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payables and accrued liabilities  9,925,389  7,948,304
  Deposits  3,098,747  520,171
  Unearned revenues  7,181,654  2,066,223
  Revenue bonds - current (notes 7 and 8)  13,380,000  2,540,000
         Total current liabilities  33,585,790  13,074,698
Noncurrent liabilities:
 Net pension liability  58,506,286  20,235,992
 Net OPEB liability  11,012,143  5,366,301
 Revenue bonds - noncurrent (notes 7 and 8)  218,657,536  54,980,672
         Total noncurrent liabilities  288,175,965  80,582,965
         Total liabilities  321,761,755  93,657,663
 
deferred inflows of resources
 Deferred inflows related to net pension liability (note 10)  1,750,190  716,121
 Deferred inflows related to net OPEB liability (note 10)  844,746  421,750
         Total deferred inflows of resources  2,594,936  1,137,871
 
net position
 Net investment in capital assets  281,146,799  153,081,316
 Restricted:
  Debt service  15,563,244  6,145,504
  Contribution to General Fund  18,000,000  1,544,138
  Stranded investments (notes 9 and 15)  77,427,235  -
  Other purposes  6,615,490 -
 Unrestricted  203,182,833  29,180,488
            Total net position  $ 601,935,601  189,951,446

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

   
  Light and Power            Water 
Operating revenues:    
 Charges for services:   
   Light and power operating revenue $ 75,866,809    -   
   Recovered transmission and energy cost   109,503,186    -   
   Public benefit charge   6,839,345    -   
   Sales to other utilities  5,336,904    -   
   CAISO-PTO*  15,830,153    -   
   Water sales within City limits   -      39,039,216 
   Water sales outside City limits   -      6,418,861 
   Municipal sales and fire protection   -      3,773,149 
   Capital improvement charge  -      11,383,518 
   Miscellaneous others  4,496,495    1,851,752 
       Total operating revenues   217,872,892    62,466,496 
   
 Operating expenses:    
   Fuel - retail   4,198,620    -   
   Fuel - wholesale   1,508,085    -   
   Purchased power - retail  90,537,777    2,611,172 
   Purchased power - wholesale and others  1,551,362    -   
   Purchased water   -      21,154,986 
   Other production costs   10,632,842    -   
   Hydro-electric power generation   63,213    -   
   Sources of supply     -      1,780,157 
   Pumping   -      1,212,474 
   Water treatment   -      2,515,184 
   Transmission and distribution   17,748,074    6,810,196 
   Administrative and general expenses   19,951,527    7,783,227 
   Customer and commercial expenses   9,846,066    3,570,846 
   Depreciation   31,955,010    8,694,776 
       Total operating expenses   187,992,576    56,133,018 
       Operating income   29,880,316    6,333,478 
   
non-operating revenues (expenses):    
   Intergovernmental revenues   293,670    1,050,879 
   Investment earnings  8,412,499    1,435,025 
   Interest expense  (9,129,374)   (2,885,893)
   Gain (loss) on disposal of assets   (16,355)   45,508 
   Other non-operating revenues (expenses)   1,085,218    1,983,991 
       Total non-operating revenues (expenses)   645,658    1,629,510 
       Income (loss) before transfers and contributions   30,525,974    7,962,988 
   Capital contributions   1,897,395    1,037,022 
   Transfers in from City of Pasadena (note 11)  5,436,527    -   
   Transfers out to City of Pasadena (note 11)  (17,314,625)   (1,894,138)
        Changes in net position   20,545,271    7,105,872 
   
net position at beginning of year   581,390,330   182,845,574 

   

net position at end of year   $601,935,601   189,951,446 

    

*California Independent System Operator - Participating Transmission Owner   

 See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements    
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CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

 

 Light and Power       Water 

Cash flows from operating activities:
 Cash received from customers  $ 215,248,713  60,990,376

 Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services  (113,170,694)  (30,196,198)

 Cash payments to employees for services  (32,239,809)  (12,502,201)

 Cash payments to other funds for services  (6,501,867)  (3,727,126)

 Miscellaneous revenues (expenses)  1,085,218  1,983,991

     Net cash provided by operating activities  64,421,561  16,548,842

   

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
 Cash transfer in  3,605,673  -

 Cash transfer out  (17,314,625)  (1,894,138)

 Advance (to)/from other funds  110,000  -

 Intergovernmental revenues  293,670  1,050,879

     Net cash used for non-capital financing activities  (13,305,282)  (843,259)

  
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
 Proceeds from long-term debt  11,575,000  -

 Bond premiums received from debt issuance  1,311,081  -

 Unspent cost of issuance                                                            36,095                               -

 Acquisition and construction of capital assets  (27,779,541)  (18,666,020)

 Proceeds from sale of capital assets  20,998  46,434

 Capital contributions  3,271,656  1,370,060

 Amount paid to bond escrow agents  (261,081)  -

 Principal paid on debt  (25,630,000)  (2,475,000)

 Interest paid on debt  (10,248,925)  (3,114,465)

     Net cash used for capital and related financing activities  (47,704,717)  (22,838,991)

 

Cash flows from investing activities:
 Purchase of investments  (36,003,396)  -

 Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments  66,126,311  1,109,222

 Investment earnings  8,735,565  1,478,160

 Payments received from loans made to suppliers  6,014,167  -

   Net cash provided by investing activities  44,872,647  2,587,382

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  48,284,209  (4,546,026)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  230,365,711  48,851,822

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 278,649,920  44,305,796

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to amounts
reported on the Statement of net Position:
 Cash and investments  $ 251,501,968  43,076,104

 Restricted:

   Cash and investments - stranded investments reserve  60,774,869  -

   Cash and investments  15,663,384  2 ,316

   Cash with fiscal agent  29  6,143,188

 Less non-cash equivalents  (49,290,330)  (4,915,812)

   Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 278,649,920  44,305,796
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CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

 

 Light and Power            Water 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:

      Operating income  $ 29,880,316  6,333,478

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided by operating activities:

 Depreciation  31,955,010  8,694,776

 Miscellaneous revenues  1,085,218  1,983,991 

 (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable  (3,708,259)  (1,870,426)

 Increase (decrease) in allowance for uncollectible accounts  1,084,080  394,306

 (Increase) decrease in inventories  (730,324)  105,191

 (Increase) decrease in prepaids and other assets  1,074,831  11,073

 (Increase) decrease in deferred outflows  2,070,072  701,766

       Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities  28,572  (847,311)

 Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue  (402,795)  -

 Increase (decrease) in deposits payable  210,948  61,305

 Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows  (399,728)  21,777

 Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability  1,612,241 796,693 

 Increase (decrease) in net pension liability  661,379  162,223

     Total adjustments  34,541,245  10,215,364

Net cash provided by operating activities  $ 64,421,561  16,548,842

non-cash investing, capital, and financing activities:

 Gain/(loss) on disposal of capital assets  $ (16,355)  45,508

 Amortization of deferred charges  (271,500)  (66,161)

 Amortization of premiums (discounts)  858,945  285,037

 Changes in fair value of investments  2,437,671  360,732

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
FINANCIAL SECTION  
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the City of 
Pasadena (“City”) as they pertain to the City’s Water and Power Enterprise Funds. The 
basic financial statements presented represent the respective balances of the funds 
and the results of operations for the funds and are not meant to represent the entirety 
of the accruals that are borne by the City that relate to the Pasadena Water and Power 
Department.

(a) Basis of Accounting

The City’s Water and Power Enterprise Funds are used to account for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the City-owned 
water and power utilities. Enterprise Funds are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they 
are earned and expenses are recognized when the related goods or services are delivered. Enterprise Funds are presented using the 
economic resources measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with 
their activity are included on their balance sheets. Enterprise Fund operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases 
(expenses) in total net position.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
an Enterprise Fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water and Power Funds are charges to 
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the Enterprise Funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the financial statements. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as a 
liability in the financial statements. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness are reported as a reduction of the related liability.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are combined in a fund, expenses are considered to be paid first from restricted 
resources, and then from unrestricted resources.

Financial reporting is based upon all Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) pronouncements.

(b) Major Funds

The accompanying financial statements report the following major funds:

Light and Power Fund – Used to account for the operations of the City’s electric utility; a self-supporting activity that renders 
services on a user-charge basis to residents and businesses as prescribed by the City Charter. 

Water Fund – Used to account for the operations of the City’s water utility; a self-supporting activity that renders services on a user-
charge basis to residents and businesses as prescribed by the City Charter.

(c) Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments that are both 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash or so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value 
because of changes in interest rates. Cash equivalents also represent the Enterprise Fund’s share in the City’s cash and investment 
pool. Cash equivalents have an original maturity date of three months or less from the date of purchase.

Notes to the 
Basic Financial Statements
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(d) Cash and Investments

Investments are reported in the accompanying financial statements at fair value based on quoted market prices, except for certain 
certificates of deposit, money market investments that mature within one year of acquisition and investment contracts that are reported 
at cost because they are not transferable, have terms that are not affected by changes in market interest rates, and provided that the  
fair value of those investments is not significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer  
or by other factors.

Both realized and unrealized changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized and recorded as net changes in fair value 
of investments. Investment earnings include net changes in fair value of investments, interest earnings and all other investment income.

The City pools cash and investments of all funds, except for certain fund specific City held portfolios, deferred compensation assets, 
and assets held by fiscal agents. Each fund’s share in this pool is displayed in the accompanying financial statements as cash and 
investments. Investment income earned by the pooled investments is allocated to the various funds based on each fund’s average 
cash and investment balance. 

The City enters into interest rate swap agreements to modify rates on outstanding debts. Other than the net interest expenditures 
resulting from these agreements, no amounts are recorded in the financial statements. 

(e) Inventories

Inventories held for consumption by the Light and Power and Water Funds are carried at the lower of weighted average cost or 
market computed on a first-in/ first-out basis depending on the type of inventory. There are three types of inventory, those held for 
consumption in operations, those capitalized, and inventory held for resale. Inventory items are accounted for as an expenditure or 
expense when consumed or sold.

(f) Advances to Other Funds

Long-term interfund advances are recorded as a receivable.

(g) Prepaids

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid assets.

(h) Restricted Cash and Investments

The City considers all cash and investments from bond proceeds in Enterprise Funds as restricted. The City is legally mandated  
under bond indentures to use these resources only for the purposes specified. Also included as restricted cash and investments 
are amounts accumulated in the Light and Power Fund for the purpose of meeting future contractual commitments including the 
Stranded Investment Reserve (“SIR”) Utilization Plan which is discussed under Note 9 – Stranded Investments.

(i) Capital Assets

Capital assets greater than $10,000 are capitalized and recorded at cost or at the estimated fair value of the assets at the time of 
acquisition where complete historical records have not been maintained. Contributed capital assets are reported at acquisition  
value at the date of the contribution. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset  
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset. A summary of the  
estimated useful lives of capital assets is as follows:

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

                 Light and Power Fund   

Production Plant 20 to 40 years

Transmission Plant 25 to 40 years

Distribution Plant 20 to 40 years

General Plant 10 to 40 years

Equipment   4 to 10 years
 
 

                           Water Fund 

Source of Supply 20 to 50 years

Pumping Plant 10 to 50 years

Treatment Plant 10 to 20 years

Transmission and 
Distribution Plant 10 to 80 years

General Plant   6 to 50 years

Equipment   4 to 10 years

N O T E S  T O  T H E  B A S I C  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  |  F o r  t h e  F i s c a l  Y e a r  E n d e d  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 2 0
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(j) Net Pension Liability

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office, and are in accordance with the implementation 
of GASB Statement No. 68.  Investments are reported at fair value.  CalPERS-audited financial statements are publicly available 
reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications. 

(k) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

For purpose of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and 
OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s OPEB plan, and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s 
fiduciary net position have been determined by an independent actuary. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. See Note 19 for additional details.

(l) Bond Premiums/Discounts/Issuance Costs

Issuance costs are recognized during the current period.  Any bond premiums and discounts are capitalized and amortized over  
the life of the bonds.  

(m) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Pursuant to GASB Statements No. 63 and 65, the City recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources.  A deferred outflow of 
resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.  A deferred 
inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.

(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures. The 
City has made certain estimates and assumptions relating to the revenues due and expenditures incurred through fiscal year end, 
collectability of its receivables, the valuation of property held for resale, the useful lives of the capital assets, the ultimate outcome 
of claims and judgments, and the valuation of pension and other post employment benefit plans’ liabilities and related deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources. Actual results may differ from those estimates and assumptions.

(o) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

Below is a summary of the GASB Statements that will be implemented in current and future financial statements (note all effective 
dates reflect that the provisions of these statements are effective for financial statements periods beginning after the date stated):

Current GASB Statements 

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authority Guidance, which was effective 
immediately. This Statement provided temporary relief to governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic 
and postponed the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became effective or are 
scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later.

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97 – Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation plans—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession 
of GASB Statement No. 32. This Statement requires that for purposes of determining whether a primary government is financially 
accountable for a potential component unit, except for a potential component unit that is a defined contribution pension plan, 
a defined contribution OPEB plan, or an other employee benefit plan (for example, certain Section 457 plans), the absence of a 
governing board should be treated the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary government 
performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform.

This Statement also requires that the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, be applicable 
to only defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the criteria in 
paragraph 3 of Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for pension plans, or paragraph 3 of Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for 
postemployment Benefit plans Other Than pension plans, respectively.

The requirements of these paragraphs did not impact the City. 

N O T E S  T O  T H E  B A S I C  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  |  F o r  t h e  F i s c a l  Y e a r  E n d e d  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 2 0
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Pending GASB Statements
 

Management is in the process of evaluating the impact of the statements to be implemented for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021 and beyond. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, management does not anticipate any significant impact from the new 
statements on the financial statements. 

(2) Cash and Investments
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2020 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

 Light and   
 Power Fund  Water Fund 
    
Statement of net position:    
 Cash and investments  $251,501,968     43,076,104  
 Restricted cash and investments:     
  To finance stranded investments  60,774,869  - 
  Other restricted cash and investments  15,663,413    6,145,504 
    
   Total cash and investments $327,940,250      49,221,608   
    
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2020 consist of the following:    
 Cash on hand                                                           $            5,100  -  
 Investment in the City of Pasadena Pool  251,499,583     43,076,104
 Investments                                                         76,435,567   6,145,504  
    
   Total cash and investments $  327,940,250    49,221,608 
 

 Statement    effective for Fiscal year
 no.   Title  Beginning On or After 

 84 Fiduciary Activities  December 15, 2019

 87 Leases  June 15, 2021

 92 Omnibus 2020  June 15, 2021

 94 Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements June 15, 2022

 97 Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code June 15, 2021
  Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84

Investments Authorized by the 
California Government Code and 
the City’s Investment Policy 

The table below identifies the 
investment types that are authorized 
for the City by the California 
Government Code and the City’s 
investment policy. The table also 
identifies certain provisions of the 
California Government Code (or the 
City’s investment policy, if more 
restrictive) that address interest rate 
risk, credit risk, and concentration of 
credit risk. This table does not address 
investments of debt proceeds held by 
bond trustee that are governed by the 
provisions of debt agreements of the 
City, rather than the general provisions 
of the California Government Code or 
the City’s investment policy.  

  Authorized By  Maximum Maximum
investment Types investment Maximum Percentage  investment
Authorized by State Law Policy Maturity* of Portfolio* in One issuer*
      
Local Agency Bonds + Yes 5 years None None
US Trerasury Obligations + Yes 5 years None None
US Agency Securities + Yes 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptance Yes 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper Yes 270 days 15% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Yes 5 years 25% None
Repurchase Agreement Yes 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements Yes 92 days 20% of base value None
Time Deposits Yes N/A 25% None
Medium Term Notes Yes 5 years 30% 5%
Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities Yes 5 years 20% None
Corporate Bonds Yes 5 years 20% 10%
County Pooled Investment Fund Yes N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund Yes N/A None None
JPA Pools (other investment pools) Yes N/A None None
Registered State Warrants Yes N/A None None
      
*  Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more restrictive  
+  With the exception of the Power Reserve and Bond Reserve Funds with consent of the bond insurers, these
    type of investment  can be held for more than five years.
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Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed 
by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than by the general 
provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment 
policy. The table to the right identifies the investment types that 
are authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The table also 
identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address 
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk related to changes in market interest rates that will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the fair value of the investment is more susceptible to changes in market 
interest rates.  One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter and 
longer term investments, and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to 
maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments held by bond trustee) to market 
interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity:

  Maximum
Authorized investment Type Maturity

US Treasury Obligations  None

US Agency Securities  None

Banker's Acceptance  360 days

Commercial Paper  270 days

Money Market Mutual Funds  N/A

Investment Contracts  20-30 years

Pre-refunded Municipal Bonds  None

Repurchase Agreements  1 year

Local Agency Investment Fund  N/A

General Obligation Bonds  None

Light and Power Fund       Remaining Maturity (in Months)   

   12 Months  13 to 24  25 to 60  More Than
investment Type Total  or Less  Months  Months  60 Months
     
Corporate Bonds  $    8,075,053   5,033,984  3,041,069   -  - 
Federal Agency Securities 39,130,042   -  -  -   39,130,042 
Municipal Bond 2,082,520  -  -  -   2,082,520 
Investment in City Pool 251,499,583  251,499,583  -  -   - 
Money Market Fund 27,103,599  27,103,599   -   -   - 
State Investment Pool 8,038  8,038  -   -   - 
Held by Bond Trustee:     
    Money Market Funds 36,315  36,315  -  -   - 
       
     Total $327,935,150  283,681,519  3,041,069   -   41,212,562 
      
      
    
Water Fund   Remaining Maturity (in Months) 

   12 Months  13 to 24  25 to 60  More Than
investment Type Total  or Less  Months  Months  60 Months  
    
Investment in City Pool $  43,076,104  43,076,104   -  -   - 
State Investment Pool  2,316  2,316  -  -   - 
Held by Bond Trustee:      
    Federal Agency Securities 4,915,812   -  -  -   4,915,812 
    Money Market Funds 1,227,376  1,227,376  -  -   - 
 
     Total  $  49,221,608  44,305,796   -   -   4,915,812  

N O T E S  T O  T H E  B A S I C  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  |  F o r  t h e  F i s c a l  Y e a r  E n d e d  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 2 0
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Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk related to an issuer of an investment that will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. 
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the 
minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the City’s investment policy or debt agreements, 
and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no 
limitations on the amount that can be invested 
in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the 
California Government Code. Investments in any 
one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, 
mutual funds, and external investment pools) 
that represent 5% or more of total Entity 
investments are on the table to the right:

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk 
that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be 
able to recover its deposits or recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for 
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be 
able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government 
Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk 
for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial 
institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by 
a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in 

Light and Power Fund    
   Reported
Issuer Investment Types Amount
   
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Securities  $24,095,370 
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency Securities 15,034,672 
Bank of America Corporate Bonds 5,033,984 
Microsoft Corporate Corporate Bonds  3,041,069  
    

Water Fund   
  Reported
Issuer Investment Types Amount
   
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Securities $3,003,120 
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency Securities 1,912,692 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
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Light and Power Fund  Minimum        Rating as of Year-End   
   Legal    
Investment Type Total Rating AAA Aa  A Not Rated  
  
Corporate Bonds $    8,075,053  A   3,041,069   -  5,033,984   - 
Federal Agency Securities 39,130,042  N/A 39,130,042  -  -   - 
Municipal Bond 2,082,520  N/A  -  2,082,520  -   - 
Investment in City Pool 251,499,583  N/A  -   -  -   251,499,583 
Money Market Funds 27,103,599  N/A -  -  -   27,103,599 
State Investment Pool 8,038  N/A -   -  -   8,038 
Held by Bond Trustee:       
     Money Market Funds 36,315   36,315   -  -  - 
       
     Total $327,935,150    42,207,426   2,082,520  5,033,984   278,611,220  
        
        
  
Water Fund   Minimum         Rating as of Year-End    
    Legal    
Investment Type Total Rating  AAA  Aa   A  Not Rated  
  
Investment in City Pool $   43,076,104  N/A -  -  -   43,076,104 
State Investment Pool 2,316  N/A  -   -  -   2,316 
Held by Bond Trustee:       
     Federal Agency Securities  4,915,812  N/A 4,915,812  -  -   - 
     Money Market Funds 1,227,376  A 1,227,376  -  -   - 
        
     Total $   49,221,608   6,143,188   -  -   43,078,420  

N/A Not Applicable
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the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial 
institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 

As of June 30, 2020, $0 of the City’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits was held in 
uncollateralized accounts.

For investments identified herein as held by bond trustee, the bond trustee selects the investment under the terms of the applicable 
trust agreement, acquires the investment, and holds the investment on behalf of the reporting government.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF”) that is regulated by the California Government Code 
under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the 
accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire 
LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by LAIF, which is recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

Investment in City of Pasadena Investment Pool

The Water and Power Enterprise Funds are voluntary participants in the City of Pasadena’s investment pool managed by the City of 
Pasadena. This pool is governed by and under the regulatory oversight of the Investment Policy adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Pasadena. The Water and Power Enterprise Funds have not adopted an investment policy separate from that of the City of Pasadena. 
The fair value of the Water and Power Enterprise Funds’ investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements 
at amounts based upon the Water and Power Enterprise Funds’ pro-rata share of the fair value calculated by the City for the entire City 
portfolio. This pool is unrated. Further information about the composition, maturities, and concentrations associated with this pool can 
be found in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City.
 
Fair Value Hierarchy

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting 
principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability.  Level 1 inputs  
are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for similar assets.  
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 

The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2020:
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Light and Power Fund 

  Not Subject to Fair Level  
Measure by Fair Value  Value Hierarchy 1 2 3 Total
     
Corporate Bonds $        -   -  8,075,053  -  8,075,053 
Federal Agency Securities -   -  39,130,042   -  39,130,042 
Municipal Bond -  -  2,082,520  -   2,082,520 
Investment in City Pool 251,499,583   -  -   -  251,499,583 
Money Market Funds 27,103,599  -  -  -   27,103,599 
State Investment Pool  8,038  -  -  -   8,038 
Held by Bond Trustee:      
 Money Market Funds 36,315  -   -  -  36,315 
       
     Total $   278,611,220  -  49,287,615  -   327,935,150 
       
Water Fund
  Not Subject to Fair   Level  
Measure by Fair Value Value Hierarchy 1 2 3 Total
     
Investment in City Pool $     43,076,104   -   -  -   43,076,104 
State Investment Pool 2,316  -   -  -  2,316 
Held by Bond Trustee: 
 Federal Agency Securities -  - 4,915,812  -  4,915,812 
 Money Market Funds 1,227,376  -  -  - 1,227,376 
   
  Total $     44,305,796  -  4,915,812  -   49,221,608 
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(3) Accounts Receivable 
As of June 30, 2020, the accounts receivable are 
categorized in table to the right:  

(4) Notes Receivable 
In January 2009, Light and Power utilized $80.0 
million of Reserves for Stranded Investment and in 
return received Subordinated Notes totaling $70.0 
million from Intermountain Power Agency (“IPA”) 
to defease some of IPA’s outstanding debt service 
requirement for Intermountain Power Project (“IPP”) 
bonds. These notes have various maturity dates, and 
the proceeds, when mature, will be used to stabilize 
future energy costs. The balance of the notes as of 
June 30, 2020 is $14,630,000.

(5) Capital Assets 
Capital asset activities for the year ended June 30, 2020 are as follows:

  Light and         
 Power Fund        Water Fund 
   
Accounts receivable  $     964,390  559,029 
Accrued revenue receivable 13,988,270   6,261,774 
Interest receivable 1,080,511  257,036 
Utility receivable 11,452,766   3,631,845 
    
 27,485,937   10,709,684 
Less: Allowance for uncollectible amounts  (1,858,142)  (609,434)
    
Total $25,627,795   10,100,250  

FINANCIAL SECTION 
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   Balance at    Transfers and  Balance at 
Light and Power Fund  june 30, 2019  Additions   Deletions  Adjustments  june 30, 2020
         
Depreciable assets:        
    Buildings and improvements $  50,148,033   -  (742,482) 1,039,233   50,444,784 
    Utility lines, machinery and        
  equipment 862,298,050  -  (8,807,579) 13,690,314  867,180,785 
         
Total cost of depreciable assets 912,446,083   -  (9,550,061) 14,729,547   917,625,569 
        
Less accumulated depreciation:        
    Buildings and improvements (16,580,927) (1,403,425) 742,487  -  (17,241,865)
    Utility lines, machinery and        
        equipment (402,654,331)  (30,551,585) 8,770,250   -   (424,435,666)

Total accumulated depreciation (419,235,258) (31,955,010) 9,512,737   -  (441,677,531)
         
Net depreciable assets 493,210,825  (31,955,010) (37,324) 14,729,547  475,948,038 
         
Capital assets not depreciated:        
  Land 3,019,553  -  -   -  3,019,553 
  Construction in progress 21,260,974  29,392,673   -  (14,729,547) 35,924,100 

Total cost of non-depreciable assets 24,280,527  29,392,673   -  (14,729,547) 38,943,653 

Capital assets, net $517,491,352  (2,562,337) (37,324)  -     514,891,691    
      

During the year, the Light and Power Fund received proceeds of $20,998 from the disposal of capital assets     
Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $31,955,010.       
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(6) Advances To Other Funds 
On May 14, 2012, City Council authorized a loan of $1,100,000 from Light and Power Fund of Pasadena Water and Power (“PWP”) 
to Public Works Department (“Public Works”) of the City and appropriated it to the Fiscal Year 2013 Capital Improvement Program 
(“CIP”) Budget for the repair and/or replacement of existing street lighting system CIP projects. Public Works agreed to repay the 
loan to PWP in ten equal annual installments of $110,000 each on January 31 of each year starting on January 31, 2014 and ending 
on January 31, 2023. The ending balance as of June 30, 2020 is $330,000.

  Balance at    Transfers and Balance at  
Water Fund  june 30, 2019  Additions   Deletions  Adjustments  june 30, 2020  
        
Depreciable assets:      
  Buildings and improvements $ 18,160,194   -  -  1,133   18,161,327 
  Utility lines, machinery and        
      equipment 271,167,934   -   (50,043) 6,967,689  278,085,580 

Total cost of depreciable assets 289,328,128   -   (50,043) 6,968,822  296,246,907  
        
Less accumulated depreciation:     
  Buildings and improvements  (4,951,454) (774,471) -  -  (5,725,925)
  Utility lines, machinery and        
      equipment (104,200,880) (7,920,305) 49,216  -  (112,071,969)

Total accumulated depreciation (109,152,334) (8,694,776) 49,216  -  (117,797,894)
         
Net depreciable assets 180,175,794  (8,694,776) (827) 6,968,822  178,449,013    
         
Capital assets not depreciated:        
   Land  1,577,527   -  (96)  -  1,577,431 
  Construction in progress  18,584,296  21,221,082  -   (6,968,822) 32,836,556 

Total cost of non-depreciable assets 20,161,823  21,221,082  (96) (6,968,822) 34,413,987
 
Capital assets, net $200,337,617  12,526,306  (923)  -    212,863,000   
         
      
During the year, the Water Fund received proceeds of $46,434 from the disposal of capital assets     
Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $8,694,776.       
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(7) Changes in Long-Term Debt  
Changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2020 are as follows:

  
 

 

  Balance at   Balance at Due Within  Due in More
Light and Power Fund june 30, 2019     Additions Reductions june 30, 2020 One Year   Than One Year  

Revenue bonds:   
  2009 Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds $15,885,000  -  (15,885,000) -  -   - 
  2010A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 9,810,000   -  (4,810,000) 5,000,000  5,000,000   - 
  2012A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 4,955,000   -  (550,000) 4,405,000  570,000   3,835,000 
  2013A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 75,985,000  -   (1,650,000) 74,335,000  1,735,000   72,600,000 
  2016A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 114,355,000   -  (2,735,000) 111,620,000  2,870,000   108,750,000 
  2019A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds -  11,575,000   -  11,575,000  3,205,000   8,370,000 
  Bond Premiums/(Discounts) 26,325,058  1,311,081  (2,533,603) 25,102,536  -   25,102,536 
 
Total Light and Power Fund Long-Term Liabilities $247,315,058  12,886,081  (28,163,603) 232,037,536  13,380,000   218,657,536 
        
     

  Balance at   Balance at Due Within  Due in More
Water Fund june 30, 2019      Additions Reductions june 30, 2020 One Year   Than One Year  

Revenue bonds:       
   2010A Water Revenue Bonds (Taxable Build America) $25,425,000   -   -  25,425,000  775,000   24,650,000 
 2010B Water Revenue Bonds (Tax-Exempt) 740,000  -  (740,000)  -  -   - 
 2011A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds  16,275,000  -   (1,210,000) 15,065,000  1,210,000   13,855,000 
 2017A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds  13,620,000  -  (525,000) 13,095,000  555,000   12,540,000 
 Bond Premiums/(Discounts) 4,220,709  -  (285,037) 3,935,672   -   3,935,672 
   
 Total Water Fund Long-Term Liabilities $60,280,709  -  (2,760,037) 57,520,672  2,540,000   54,980,672  
  

(8) Revenue Bonds
  
 Outstanding at
Light and Power Fund  june 30, 2020
 
 

2010A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds

On August 3, 2010, the City issued $36,320,000 of 2010A Series Electric Revenue/Refunding 
Bonds, to refund a portion of the outstanding 2002 Electric Revenue Bonds and pay the 
issuance costs of the 2010 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds. The refunding has generated 
a net present value savings of $3.18 million or 8.9% of the refunded bonds. Interest is 
payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 commencing December 1, 2010 at rates 
varying from 2.0% to 4.0% per annum. Principal is payable in annual installments ranging 
from $180,000 to $5,000,000 commencing June 1, 2011 and ending June 1, 2021. This 
debt issue is subject to a reserve requirement in conjunction with non-subordinate (parity) 
debt issued by the City. The City is in compliance with the revenue rate covenant requiring 
net income of the electric system to be at least equal to 1.10 times the amount necessary 
to pay principal and interest on the bonds and all other parity bonds. This refunding was 
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 11 years by $4.19 million  
and has resulted in an economic gain of $3.18 million.                                                                                                    $5,000,000

FINANCIAL SECTION 

  Balance at    Transfers and Balance at  
Water Fund  june 30, 2019  Additions   Deletions  Adjustments  june 30, 2020  
        
Depreciable assets:      
  Buildings and improvements $ 18,160,194   -  -  1,133   18,161,327 
  Utility lines, machinery and        
      equipment 271,167,934   -   (50,043) 6,967,689  278,085,580 

Total cost of depreciable assets 289,328,128   -   (50,043) 6,968,822  296,246,907  
        
Less accumulated depreciation:     
  Buildings and improvements  (4,951,454) (774,471) -  -  (5,725,925)
  Utility lines, machinery and        
      equipment (104,200,880) (7,920,305) 49,216  -  (112,071,969)

Total accumulated depreciation (109,152,334) (8,694,776) 49,216  -  (117,797,894)
         
Net depreciable assets 180,175,794  (8,694,776) (827) 6,968,822  178,449,013    
         
Capital assets not depreciated:        
   Land  1,577,527   -  (96)  -  1,577,431 
  Construction in progress  18,584,296  21,221,082  -   (6,968,822) 32,836,556 

Total cost of non-depreciable assets 20,161,823  21,221,082  (96) (6,968,822) 34,413,987
 
Capital assets, net $200,337,617  12,526,306  (923)  -    212,863,000   
         
      
During the year, the Water Fund received proceeds of $46,434 from the disposal of capital assets     
Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $8,694,776.       
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2012A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds

On August 6, 2012, the City Council approved the issuance of Electric Revenue/Refunding 
Bonds, 2012A Series to partially refinance the current outstanding 2002 bonds and fully 
refund the outstanding 2003 bonds in the amount of up to $15 million.  On September 24, 
2012, the City sold $11,780,000 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds, 2012A Series on a 
competitive basis.  The purpose of the refunding was purely for economic reasons.  The City 
realized a present value savings of $1.1 million or 10.15% present value savings rate.  The true  
interest cost on the financing was 1.54%.                                                                                                                                  4,405,000

2013A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds

On September 30, 2013 approved issuance of up to $85 million on the Electric Revenue/
Refunding Bonds, 2013A Series to fully refund the outstanding 2002 bonds, fund a Parity 
Reserve Fund, and to finance a portion of the costs of acquisition and construction of certain 
improvements to the Electrical System.  On December 3, 2013, the City sold $80,485,000 
Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds, 2013A Series on a competitive basis.  The City  
realized a present value savings of $330,000.  The true interest cost on the financing  
was 4.74%.                                                                                                                                                                                   74,335,000

2016A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds

On December 1, 2016, the City issued the Electric Revenue /Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A 
(2016A Revenue Bonds) in the amount of $119,440,000 to advance refund the City’s 2008 
Electric Revenue Bonds, repay the 2015 Line of Credit with Bank of America, pay the cost 
of issuance of the 2016A Revenue Bonds and to fund improvements to the City’s Electrical 
System.  The rates of interest vary from 4.00% to 5.00% payable semi-annually on December 
1 and June 1 of each year, commencing June 1, 2017. Principal is payable in annual 
installments ranging from $2,480,000 to $6,265,000 commencing June 1, 2018 and ending 
June 1, 2046. The City realized debt service savings of $9.67 million and a present value 
savings of $5.77 million.  The true interest cost of the financing was 2.88%.  The refunding  
resulted in a deferred charge of $1,096,185.                                                                                                          111,620,000

2019A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds

On August 1, 2019, the City issued the Electric Revenue/Refunding bonds, Series 2019A 
(2019A Revenue Bonds)  in the amount of $11,575,000 to refund the City’s 2009 Electric 
Revenue Bonds, pay the cost of issuance of the 2019A Revenue Bonds, and to fund 
improvements to the City’s Electrical System.  The 5.00% interest rate is payable semi-
annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2020. Principal is 
payable in annual installments ranging from $1,940,000 to $3,205,000 commencing August 1, 
2020 and ending August 1, 2024. The City realized debt service savings of $921 thousand and 
a present value savings of $900 thousand.  The true interest cost of the financing was  
0.98%.  The refunding resulted in a deferred gain of $1,000,537.                                                                                  11,575,000

Total Light and Power Fund Revenue Bonds                                                                                     $206,935,000
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 Outstanding at
Water Fund   june 30, 2020
  
 

2010A & B Water Revenue Bonds

On December 23, 2010, the City issued $30,000,000 of 2010 Water Revenue Bonds consisting 
of $25,425,000 of 2010A Series Taxable Build America Bonds (“2010A Bonds”) and $4,575,000 
of 2010B Series Tax-Exempt (“2010B Bonds”). The 2010 Water Revenue Bonds were issued to 
finance the costs of acquisition and construction of certain capital improvements to the Water 
System, to make an additional deposit to the Parity Reserve Fund, and to pay costs of issuance of 
the bonds. Interest on the 2010A Bonds, which varies from 6.0% to 7.3% per annum, is payable 
semi-annually on June 1 and December 1, commencing June 1, 2011. Principal is payable in 
annual installments ranging from $775,000 to $1,910,000 commencing June 1, 2021 and ending 
June 1, 2040. Interest on the 2010B Bonds, with rates varying from 3.0% to 5.0% per annum, 
is payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 commencing June 1, 2011. Principal is 
payable in annual installments ranging from $585,000 to $740,000 commencing June 1, 2014 
and ending June 1, 2020. This debt issue is subject to a reserve requirement in conjunction with 
non-subordinate (parity) debt issued by the City. The City is in compliance with the revenue rate 
covenant requiring net income of the water system to be at least equal to 1.10 times the amount 
necessary to pay principal and interest on the bonds and all other parity bonds.                                                              $25,425,000

2011A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds

On December 20, 2011, the City issued $29,770,000 of 2011A Series Water Revenue/Refunding 
Bonds, to refund a portion of the outstanding 2003 Water Revenue Bonds and pay the issuance 
costs of the 2011 Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds. The refunding has generated a net present 
value savings of $3.5 million or 11.36% savings of the refunded bonds.  Interest is payable  
semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 commencing June 1, 2012 at coupon rates varying 
from 3.0% to 5.0% per annum.  Principal is payable in annual installments ranging from $25,000 
to $2,490,000 commencing June 1, 2013 and ending June 1, 2033.  This debt issue is subject to a 
reserve requirement in conjunction with non-subordinate (parity) debt issued by the City. The City 
is in compliance with the revenue rate covenant requiring net income of the water system to be 
at least equal to 1.10 times the amount necessary to pay principal and interest on the bonds and 
all other parity bonds.                                                                                                                                                                     15,065,000

2017A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds

On April 5, 2017, the City issued the Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A (2017A 
Revenue Bonds) in the amount of $15,395,000 to advance refund the City’s 2007 Water Revenue 
Bonds and pay the cost of issuance of the 2017A Revenue Bonds.  The rate of interest is 5.00% 
payable semi-annually on December 1 and June 1 of each year, commencing June 1, 2017. 
Principal is payable in annual installments ranging from $475,000 to $1,150,000 commencing 
June 1, 2017 and ending June 1, 2036. The City realized debt service savings of $1.67 million and 
a present value savings of $1.23 million.  The true interest cost of the financing was 3.25%.                                             13,095,000

Total Water Fund Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                        $53,585,000

FINANCIAL SECTION 
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Disclosure Related to Long-Term Debt Under GASB 88

In regards to, the City’s outstanding bonds from public offerings related to business-type, activities (2010AB, 2011A and 2017A 
Water Revenue Bonds and 2010A, 2012A, 2013A, 2016A and 2019A Electric Revenue Bonds) are payable from and secured by 
revenue received by the Utilities (Water and Power Funds).

In relations to the Electric Revenue Bonds course of action in case of the City’s default, the following is the course of action:

Upon the concurrence and continuation of and Event of Default the Bond Owners’ Committee or, if there is none, the Owners of 25% 
in aggregate Bond Obligation of Bonds then Outstanding may, by written notice to the City, declare the entire unpaid principal of the 
Bonds due and payable and, thereupon the entire unpaid principal of the Bonds will forthwith become due and payable.  Upon any such 
declaration the City will forthwith pay to the Owners of the Bonds the entire unpaid principal of, premium, pledged for such purpose.  If at 
any time after such a declaration and before the entry of a final judgement or decree in any suit, action or proceeding instituted on account 
of such default or before the completion of the enforcement of any other remedy under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, the principal of all 
Bonds that have matured or been called for redemption pursuant to any sinking fund provision and all arrears of interest have been paid 
and any other Events of Default which may have occurred have been remedied, then the Bonds Owners’ Committee or, if there is none, 
the Owners of 25% in aggregate Bonds Obligation of Bond then Outstanding may, by written notice of the City, rescind of annual such 
declaration and its consequences.  No such rescission or annulment will extend to or affect any subsequent default or impair any right 
consequent thereon.

In relations to the Water Revenue Bonds course of action in case of the City’s default, the following is the course of action:

Application of Pledged Revenues and Other Funds After Default; Acceleration.  If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the 
City shall immediately transfer to the Trustee all pledged Revenues held by it and received thereafter and the Trustee shall apply all 
pledged Revenues and any other funds then held or thereafter received by the Trustee under any of the provisions of the Indenture  
(except as otherwise provided in the Indenture) as follows and in the following order:

(1) To the payment of any expenses necessary in the opinion of the Trustee to protect the interests of the Owners of the Bonds and 
parity Debt, including the costs and expenses of the Trustee and the Bondholders in declaring such Event of Default, and payment of 
reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee (including reasonable fees and disbursements of its counsel and other agents) incurred in 
and about the performance of its powers and duties under the Indenture;

(2) To the payment of the whole amount of Bond Obligation then due on the Bonds and parity Debt (upon presentation of the Bonds 
and parity Debt to be paid, and stamping thereon of the payment if only partially paid, or surrender thereof if fully paid) subject to 
the provisions of the Indenture, with interest on such Bond Obligation at the rate or rates of interest borne by the respective Bonds 
and parity Debt, to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest then due and the unpaid principal or 
Redemption price of any Bonds and parity Debt which shall have become due, whether at maturity or by call for redemption, in the 
order of their due dates, with interest on the overdue Bond Obligation and parity Debt at the rate borne by the respective Bonds and 
parity Debt, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full all the Bonds and parity Debt due on any date, together with 
such interest, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of principal or interest or Accreted Value (plus accrued 
interest) due on such date to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference; and

(3) To the extent not paid pursuant to clause (1) or (2) above, to any Credit provider any amounts then due and owing.  

 In each and every such case during the continuance of such Event of Default, the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate 
amount of Bond Obligation of the Bonds at the time Outstanding shall be entitled, upon notice in writing to the City, to declare the 
principal of all of the Bonds then Outstanding, and the interest accrued thereon, to be due and payable immediately, and upon any such 
declaration the same shall become and shall be immediately due and payable, anything in the Indenture or in the Bonds contained to 
the contrary notwithstanding.

 This provision, however, is subject to the condition that if, at any time after the principal of the Bonds shall have been so declared due 
and payable, the City shall pay to or shall deposit with the Trustee a sum sufficient to pay all principal on such Bonds matured prior 
to such declaration and all matured installments of interest (if any) upon all the Bonds, and the reasonable fees and expenses of the 
Trustee, and any and all other defaults known to the Trustee (other than in the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds due 
and payable solely by reason of such declaration) shall have been made good or cured to the satisfaction of the Trustee, or provision 
deemed by the Trustee to be adequate shall have been made therefor, then, and in every such case, the Owners of not less than a 
majority in aggregate amount of Bond Obligation of the Bonds at the time Outstanding, by written notice to the City and to the Trustee, 
may, on behalf of the Owners of all the Bonds, rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences; but no such rescission and 
annulment shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default, or shall impair or exhaust any right or power consequent thereon.
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(9) Stranded Investments 
In November 2006, the City Council approved the Stranded Investment Reserve (“SIR”) Utilization Plan (“Plan”). In January 2009, 
in accordance with the Plan and a previously approved Prepayment Agreement (“Agreement”), PWP utilized approximately $80.0 
million of the reserve funds to complete an economic defeasance of selected bonds for IPP. As authorized in the Agreement, the IPA 
issued approximately $70.0 million of subordinated notes to PWP, the payments for which will offset a portion of the debt service 
associated with the economically-defeased bonds, thereby reducing the cost of energy purchased from IPP.  In September 2018, 
a plan of withdrawing $7.0 million per year beginning FY 2019 through FY 2022 from the SIR was approved to offset the stranded 
costs associated with the Intermountain Power Plant and Magnolia Power Plant projects, and potential increases in power costs to 
customers.

As of June 30, 2020, the SIR balance was about $77.4 million. The details of the additions and subtractions from the Reserve that 
occurred during fiscal year 2020 are shown below. 

Restricted Cash and Investment     

Beginning balance   $65,911,092  

Interest earnings     1,159,428  

Market gain/losses     704,349  

Transfer of SIR    (7,000,000)

Restricted cash and investment ending balance   $60,774,869 
   

IPA Subordinated Notes Balance at  Balance at
 june 30, 2019 Reduction june 30, 2020

Notes Receivable $20,644,167  (6,014,167) 14,630,000  

Premium   2,696,488   (674,122)  2,022,366  

Total IPA Subordinated Notes $23,340,655  (6,688,289) 16,652,366  
    

Restricted for Stranded Investments at june 30, 2020   $77,427,235 

N O T E S  T O  T H E  B A S I C  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  |  F o r  t h e  F i s c a l  Y e a r  E n d e d  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 2 0
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Deferred Inflows:

Light and Power Fund      
 Balance at   Balance at
 june 30, 2019 Increase Decrease june 30, 2020

GASB68 Change of Assumptions  $ 1,490,047   -   (919,664)  570,383 

GASB68 Difference in Experience 1,408,158   -   (992,286)  415,872 

GASB68 Difference on Pension Plan Investments  -  763,935   -   763,935 

GASB75 Change of Assumptions 67,461  -   (15,911)  51,550 

GASB75 Difference in Experience -  790,475   -   790,475 

GASB75 Difference between projected and actual earnings  
on OPEB plan investments 3,260  -   (539)  2,721 

 $ 2,968,926  1,554,410   (1,928,400)  2,594,936   

Water Fund      
 Balance at   Balance at
 june 30, 2019 Increase Decrease june 30, 2020

GASB68 Change of Assumptions $  557,942  -  (324,560) 233,382 

GASB68 Difference in Experience 465,592  -  (295,430)  170,162 

GASB68 Difference on Pension Plan Investments - 312,577  -  312,577 

GASB75 Change of Assumptions 32,249   -   (6,512)  25,737 

GASB75 Difference in Experience  -   394,654   -   394,654 

GASB75 Difference between projected and actual earnings  
on OPEB plan investments 1,613   -  (254) 1,359  

  $ 1,057,396  707,231   (626,756)  1,137,871 

Water Fund      
 Balance at   Balance at
 june 30, 2019 Increase Decrease june 30, 2020

2003 Water Bonds Deferred Charges $  264,645  -  (66,161)  198,484  
GASB68 Contribution Subsequent to Measurement Date 2,198,612  2,591,513  (2,198,612)  2,591,513  
GASB68 Net Difference on Pension Plan Investments 193,569  -  (193,569)  -  
GASB68 Change of Assumptions 2,232,122  -   (1,836,715)  395,407  
GASB68 Difference in Experience  -  283,621   -   283,621  
GASB75 Net Difference on OPEB Plan Investments  -  258   258  
GASB75 Change of Assumptions 169,780  552,916   -   722,696  
 $ 5,058,728   3,428,308  (4,295,057)  4,191,979  

(10) Deferred Inflow and Outflow of Resources

Deferred Outflows:

Light and Power Fund        
 Balance at   Balance at
 june 30, 2019 Increase Decrease june 30, 2020
1998 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges $    433,854   -   (108,463) 325,391 
2002 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges 585,991   -  (292,996) 292,995 
2008 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges 962,505  -  (53,471)  909,034 
2019 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges -  391,877  (1,208,984) (817,107)
GASB68 Contribution Subsequent to Measurement Date 5,282,299  6,333,618  (5,282,299) 6,333,618 
GASB68 Net Difference on Pension Plan Investments 52,462   -  (52,462) - 
GASB68 Change of Assumptions  5,728,665  -  (4,762,296) 966,369 
GASB68 Difference in  Experience -  693,166  -  693,166 
GASB75 Net Difference on OPEB Plan Investments -   515  -  515 
GASB75 Change of Assumptions 342,099  1,103,320  -  1,445,419 
 $13,387,875  8,522,496   (11,760,971) 10,149,400   
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Light and Power Fund        
 Balance at   Balance at
 june 30, 2019 Increase Decrease june 30, 2020
1998 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges $    433,854   -   (108,463) 325,391 
2002 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges 585,991   -  (292,996) 292,995 
2008 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges 962,505  -  (53,471)  909,034 
2019 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges -  391,877  (1,208,984) (817,107)
GASB68 Contribution Subsequent to Measurement Date 5,282,299  6,333,618  (5,282,299) 6,333,618 
GASB68 Net Difference on Pension Plan Investments 52,462   -  (52,462) - 
GASB68 Change of Assumptions  5,728,665  -  (4,762,296) 966,369 
GASB68 Difference in  Experience -  693,166  -  693,166 
GASB75 Net Difference on OPEB Plan Investments -   515  -  515 
GASB75 Change of Assumptions 342,099  1,103,320  -  1,445,419 
 $13,387,875  8,522,496   (11,760,971) 10,149,400   

FINANCIAL SECTION 

(11) Transfers 
The following is a summary of transfers in and out for the year ended June 30, 2020: 

Transfer From Transfer To Amount 

Light and Power Fund City of Pasadena $17,314,625  (1)

Water Fund City of Pasadena 1,894,138  (2)

City of Pasadena Light and Power Fund 5,436,527  (3)

(1)  Light and Power contributed $17,314,625 to the General Fund for the payment of interest and principal on City bonds, municipal  
 improvements, and other purposes. 
(2)  The Water Fund provided payment of $1,894,138 to the General Fund. Of this amount, $1,544,138 was payment to cover City 
  services which directly benefited the Water Fund, and $350,000 to support Hahamongna Watershed Park operations benefiting  
 the Water Fund.
(3)  The City of Pasadena transferred $5,436,527 to the Light and Power Fund to cover costs of certain electrical undergrounding   
 projects from the Underground Utility Fund. 

(12) Self-Insurance 
The Water and Power Department participates in the City's self-insurance and excess insurance programs for various lines of 
liability coverage. Liability claims are self-administered, within the self-insured retention. For the period July 1, 2019 to June 
30, 2020 excess liability insurance was purchased with limits of $25 million excess of a $3 million per occurrence self-insured 
retention. Excess worker’s compensation insurance currently with a $4,000,000 self-insurance retention, was renewed with 
the current carrier Safety National Insurance Company. This coverage was initially purchased in FY 2016 and renewed through 
FY2019, with a $5,000,000 self-insured retention. Worker’s Compensation claims for all City workers, including Public Safety, Fire 
and Police, are administered by a Third Party Administrator, AdminSure. The City maintains a few self-administered claims (with 
dates of Injury before 7/1/2012). 

Self-Insurance losses and administrative costs are reported in the General Liability and Workers’ Compensation Internal Service 
Funds. Losses incurred are reimbursed by departments over a period of time as part of an internal service assessment system. 
Legal expenses are reported in the City Attorney Department of the General Fund. A case reserve is established for each claim, 
monitored and adjusted by the Liability Division or the Workers’ Compensation Claims Supervisor, including expected litigation 
expenses and losses that will be paid by the City Treasurer. 

The City renewed Property Insurance on all its buildings, including Equipment Breakdown, with a combined total scheduled 
insured value of $1.077 billion. The policy includes coverage for fine arts, valuable papers, business personal property, 
business income and extended business income or rental value. Policy limits are $250,000,000 with a deductible of $25,000 
for Earthquake Sprinkler Leakage, $100,000 for Flood, and $25,000 for any other covered loss. Exclusions include earthquake, 
collapse of buildings and nuclear hazard. There have been no new claims during FY 2020. 

The City’s Property: Power Plant Boiler and Machinery policy, with total insured value of $396,539,580. The program provides 
property and equipment breakdown coverage for City’s power plant facilities and machinery. The policy affords coverage for 
risks of loss or damage, including boiler explosion and machinery breakdown. Policy limits are $130,000,000 with deductibles of 
$750,000 per occurrence for all other property damage and $1,500,000 per occurrence for machinery breakdown of GT1, GT3, 
and GT5. The City has received no new claims under this policy for FY 2020. 

In an effort to protect the City’s assets and transfer potential risk, the City also purchases the following insurance policies: 
Medical Malpractice; Pollution Liability; Terrorism for Property and Business Interruption and Terrorism & Sabotage Insurance; 
Auto Physical Damage; Cyber Risk Privacy Liability; Fiduciary (purchased for and by the Fire and Police Retirement System); and 
Crime policies. 

The claims liability reported in the General Liability and Workers’ Compensation Internal Service Funds is based on the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires a liability for claims to be reported if information prior to the issuance of 
the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and 
the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated, including incurred but not yet reported claims. 

Additional information regarding the City’s self-insurance program can be found in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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The City’s electric operation has entered into various “Take or Pay” contracts to provide for current and future electric generating 
capacity and transmission of energy for City customers. The City is obligated to pay the amortized cost of indebtedness regardless 
of the ability of the contracting agency to provide electricity and/or transmission, as applicable. The original indebtedness will be 
amortized by adding the financing costs to purchase energy over the life of the contract. 

A summary of the City of Pasadena’s “Take or Pay” contracts (by project) as of June 30, 2020, and its estimated contractual 
obligations through 2036, based on projected energy prices (in millions) are as follows: 

Intermountain Power Authority 
The Intermountain Power Authority (“IPA”), a subdivision of the State of Utah, was formed in June 1977 to finance the construction of 
a 1,800-megawatt (“MW”) coal-fueled generating plant consisting of two generating units located near Delta, Utah. The City has two 
separate contracts with the IPA and certain Utah participants, namely the Power Sales Entitlement contract and the Excess Sales 
contract, which currently provide the City with a 107 MW (or about 5.9%) maximum contractual entitlement in the facility. The City is 
obligated for 79 MW or approximately 4.4% of the generation through the Power Sales contract. The Excess Sales Agreement with 
IPA, agent for the Utah Municipal Purchasers and the Cooperative Purchasers, entitles the City to an additional share of up to 29 
megawatts or about 1.6%. Approximately 450-500 gigawatt hours (“GWh”) of energy are delivered to the City from IPP each year.  

(13) Pension Plans 
Each full-time employee and each part-time employee (with 1,000 hours or more of service) of Pasadena Water and Power is a 
member of either the Fire or Police Retirement System (“FPRS”) or California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”). 
The City has issued pension bonds to fund the unfunded pension obligation of the City. A portion of this debt is attributable to 
Pasadena Water and Power employees. Additional information regarding the City’s defined benefit pension plans and related 
pension obligation bonds can be found in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

(14) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
The City provides a subsidy to retirees of the City who are members of the CalPERS or FPRS.   Benefit provisions are established 
and amended through negotiations between the City and the respective unions.  A portion of the OPEB expenses and liability 
are allocated to Water and Power funds based on number of employees. Additional information regarding the City’s OPEB plan, 
contributions, net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB 
expense can be found in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

(15) Commitments and Contingencies 

jointly Governed Organizations 

“Take or Pay” Contracts 

 (in millions)      
       
 SCPPA Projects      
    
       Prepaid
    IPA  Mead- Mead-   Natural
     Project STS Adelanto Phoenix Magnolia Milford I Gas
        
Bonds and Notes sold (outstanding) $460  377  16  5  249  112   285 

Interest (22) 59  -  -  87  32   136 
        
Combined total debt service 438  436  16  5  336   144   421 
        
City percentage (rounded) 5.9% 5.9% 8.6% 13.8% 6.4% 2.5% 16.5%
        
City obligations $  26  26  1  1  22  4   69   
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Southern California Public Power Authority 
The City of Pasadena Light and Power Fund joined the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) on November 1, 1980. 
This authority, consisting of the cities of Los Angeles, Pasadena, Anaheim, Azusa, Banning, Riverside, Colton, Vernon, Burbank, 
Glendale, Cerritos,  and the Imperial Irrigation District, was formed for the purpose of planning, financing, developing, acquiring, and 
constructing future power and transmission resources. The Joint Powers Agreement has a term of fifty years. The City entered into 
seven projects with SCPPA.

palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station 
The first project in which SCPPA participated is approximately 4,000 MW nuclear fuel generation plant in Arizona (Palo Verde). The 
Palo Verde Nuclear Project consists of three (3) units, each having an electric output of approximately 1,330 MW. Units 1 and 2 began 
commercial operation in February and September 1986, respectively; and Unit 3 began commercial operation in January 1988. 
Pasadena’s entitlement share of Palo Verde generation is about 4.4% or 9.9 MW. 

Southern Transmission System (STS) 
SCPPA financed a second project called the Southern Transmission System (“STS”), which transmits power from the IPP to 
Southern California. The 500 kilovolt (“kV”) direct current (“DC”) is rated at 2,400 MW. The City’s share of the line is approximately 
5.9% or 141 MW. STS commenced commercial operations in July 1986. 

Mead-Adelanto Transmission System 
SCPPA financed a third project called the Mead-Adelanto Transmission System consisting of a 202-mile long 500 kV alternating 
current (“AC”) transmission line extending between the Adelanto substation in Southern California and the Marketplace substation in 
Nevada. Commercial operations commenced in April 1996. Nine members own one-third of Mead-Adelanto through SCPPA. The City 
is obligated for 75 MW or about 8.6% of the SCPPA entitlement. 

Mead-phoenix Transmission System 
SCPPA financed a fourth project called the Mead-Phoenix Transmission System consisting of a 256-mile long 500 kV AC 
transmission line extending between the Westwing substation in Arizona and the Marketplace substation in Nevada. Commercial 
operations commenced in April 1996. SCPPA has executed an ownership agreement providing it with member-related ownership 
shares of about 13.9% in the Westwing–Mead project component, approximately 11.4% in the Mead Substation project component, 
and about 14.5% in the Mead–Marketplace project component. The City has entered into a transmission service contract with SCPPA, 
which obligates the City to pay the cost of its share of the transfer capability of about 13.8% or 158 combined MW. 

Magnolia project 
SCPPA financed a fifth project called the “Magnolia Power Project” consisting of a natural gas-fired generating facility with a 
nominally rated net base capacity of 242 MW.  The facility is located on an existing generating site in the City of Burbank, California, 
including necessary and appurtenant facilities and equipment thereto, the applicable portion of any common facilities, and 
interconnection facilities. . The Project was constructed for the primary purpose of providing the participants in the Project with firm 
capacity and energy to help meet their power and energy requirements in 2005 and thereafter. Commercial operations commenced 
September 2005. SCPPA owns the Magnolia Power Project, and six SCPPA members have contracted with SCPPA for 100% of its 
output. The City of Pasadena’s indenture cost share is about 6.4% or 14.8 MW of base capacity. 

Milford I wind project 
In April 2007, the City approved participation in the Milford Wind Corridor Phase I, LLC Wind Generation Project, a new 200 MW 
wind-generating facility constructed in Millard County, Utah and a power sales agreement with SCPPA for a 5 MW or 2.5% of 200 MW 
share of the project. The project serves the goals established by the City’s Renewable Portfolio Standard for PWP and aids the City in 
achieving its environmental goals. The project began commercial operation in November 2009. 
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prepaid Natural Gas project 
On October 2007, SCPPA and the City of Pasadena along with the Cities of Anaheim, Burbank, Colton, and Glendale entered into 
separate Prepaid Natural Gas Program Gas Supply Agreements (Gas Project No.1). Gas Project No.1 primarily consists of the 
acquisition by SCPPA of the right to receive an aggregate amount of approximately 135 billion cubic feet of natural gas from J. 
Aron pursuant to the terms of the Prepaid Natural Gas Sales Agreements. The gas is delivered by J. Aron to SCPPA at designated 
delivery points on the natural gas pipelines that serve each City, in specified daily quantities each month, beginning July 1, 2008, 
over approximately a 30-year term of each of the Prepaid Natural Gas Sales Agreements. In 2009 the contract was amended to 
reduce the duration by 3 years and reduce the size of the agreement from average of 2,000 million British Thermal Units (“MMBtu”) 
to average of approximately 1,400 MMBtu’s. Gas sold under the Agreements is priced at the applicable Monthly Index Price for 
the primary delivery point less a specified discount. Each agreement provides for the sale to the Cities on a pay-as-¬you-go basis. 
The electric utility systems owned by each City in part provide gas-fired electric utility service to retail consumers located in their 
respective areas. The City of Pasadena’s participation share is 16.5% or an average daily quantity of 1,400 MMBtu. 

Natural Gas Development Project 
On July 1, 2004, nine SCPPA members, including Pasadena, signed a Development Agreement to jointly examine the feasibility 
and economies of purchasing a share in a natural gas reserve field. On July 1, 2005, Pasadena and five out of the eight original 
interested parties signed a first agreement with SCPPA, which entitled the City to purchase up to 1,000 MMBtu per day output 
share of natural gas reserves.

Anschutz-pinedale Gas Reserves project 
On July 1, 2005, SCPPA successfully closed the first transaction to purchase an interest in natural gas reserves under the Natural 
Gas Development Project to help ensure a stable fuel supply for PWP’s power plants. It will help ensure a stable supply for PWP’s 
power plants and stabilize the most volatile component of PWP’s operating expenses. SCPPA and other participants, including 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power and the Turlock Irrigation District, signed purchase agreements with Anschutz 
Pinedale Corp. in Denver to buy a portion of the company’s natural gas reserves in Wyoming for $300 million. Other participating 
cities include Anaheim, Burbank, Colton, and Glendale. The agreement gives PWP about 2.4% ownership in the acquisition at a 
total cost of $6.5 million including development and transaction costs. 

Barnett Gas Reserves project 
On October 26, 2006, SCPPA secured a second property interest in a natural gas reserve field under the Gas Development 
Agreement located at the Barnett Shale Formation in Texas. Pasadena’s SCPPA partners in this project include the cities of 
Anaheim, Burbank, and Colton. The Barnett property, in its early stages of development, initially provided up to 250 MMBtu per 
day of gas at less than $6 per MMBtu. However, additional capital development (drilling) of the property resulted in greater daily 
volumes available for participants. 

Additional financial information on the SCPPA may be obtained by contacting the City of Pasadena Department of Water and 
Power at 150 South Los Robles, Suite 200, Pasadena, CA 91101. 

Challenges 
In response to California Assembly Bill 1890 (“AB1890”), the City chose to open its market to competition on January 1, 2000. The 
City has long-term contracts with IPA and SCPPA, most of which obligate the City to purchase power and/or services at cost, which 
was projected to be higher than market in a deregulated environment. As a result, the City was faced with a “stranded investment” 
with a value estimated to be approximately $145.5 million in 2006. AB1890 provided for the recovery of this stranded investment 
through a “Competition Transition Charge” on each customer’s utility bill. The City stopped collecting this charge after July 1, 2002.  
A competitive financial strategy, which includes a ten-year financial planning model developed in 1996 and updated annually, serves 
as the blueprint for managing the Utility through the open market transition. The strategy includes recovery and elimination of the 
stranded investment with minimal impact on customer rates over approximately five years. The City has implemented the approved 
Stranded Investment Utilization Plan by direct defeasance of the debt service of IPP outstanding bonds and mitigation of variable 
energy costs. In September 2018, the City implemented a plan of withdrawing $7.0 million per year beginning FY 2019 through FY 
2022 from the Stranded Investment fund to offset the stranded costs associated with the Intermountain Power Plant and Magnolia 
Power Plant projects, and potential increases in power costs to customers. As of June 30, 2020, the City’s Reserve for Stranded 
Investment fund balance was approximately $77.4 million. 

Other 
Certain federal and state revenues are received for specific purposes and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. City 
management is of the opinion that adjustments, if any, resulting from such audits will not be significant. 
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Litigation 
A number of suits and claims are pending against Pasadena Water and Power arising in the normal course of operations. In the 
opinion of management, the results of such legal actions will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results 
of operations of Pasadena Water and Power. 

In 2017, the City was served with a class action lawsuit entitled Komesar v. City of Pasadena, which generally asserts that the 
City’s electric utility rates are more than reasonably necessary to operate the utility to the extent they finance the City’s annual 
Charter-authorized transfers from the Light & Power Fund to the General Fund, which was $17.3 million for FY 2020. The lawsuit 
seeks a refund of the transferred funds. The City is vigorously defending the allegations, and a court trial is presently set for 
February 2021. 

(16) Pledged Revenue 
Pasadena Water and Power has a number of outstanding debt issuances that are collateralized by pledged electric and water 
revenues. The amount and term of the remainder of these outstanding debts are presented in Note 8. The purpose of the debt 
issuances was for the financing of certain Light and Power and Water projects. For the current year, debt service payments as 
a percentage of the pledged gross revenue (net of certain expenses) are indicated in the table below. These percentages also 
approximate the relationship of debt service of pledged revenues for the remainder of the term of these debts: 

(17) Subsequent Events 
Subsequent events were evaluated through the date of the audit report.

Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds, 2020A Series 

On September 14, 2020, the City Council authorized the issuance of Pasadena Water Revenue/Refunding Series 2020A Bonds 
to refund the outstanding $25,425,000 balance on existing 2010A Water Revenue Bond series and borrow an additional up to 
$25,000,000 in new bond proceeds. On November 16, 2020 the 2020A bonds were sold on a competitive basis and the City 
Council accepted the winning bid, fixed the interest rate or rate on the bonds, and only utilized part of the authorization to borrow 
$15,000,000 in new proceeds.

Vote to Ratify Annual Power Fund Transfer to General Fund 

At the November 3, 2020 election, Pasadena voters passed the Pasadena City Services Protection Measure (Measure P). This 
measure calling for a charter amendment was approved by 83.6 percent of Pasadena voters. This ratifies the annual transfer 
from the Power Fund to the General Fund, and changes the City Charter to allow up to a 12 percent (reduced from 16 percent) 
transfer. This protects an approximate $18 million annual transfer to the General Fund and helps to support emergency 911 
response, fire, paramedics, police, public health programs, senior services, homelessness programs, street repairs, clean and 
safe public along with other general services.
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 Annual Amount of      
 Pledged Revenue Annual Debt Debt Service as
Description of (net of expenses) Service Payments a Percentage of
Pledged Revenue (in thousands) (in thousands) Pledged Revenue
     
Light and Power Revenues $70,247  23,254  33%
      
Water Revenues 16,463  5,589  34%
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59REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Notes to Schedule:               
              
Benefit Changes:              
 There were no changes in benefits.  
            
Changes in Assumptions:               
 From fiscal year June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016:           
  GASB 68, paragraph 68 states that the long-term expected rate of return should be determined net of pension plan investment expense but  
  without reduction for pension plan administrative expense.  The discount rate of 7.50% used for the June 30, 2014 measurement date was net  
  of administrative expenses.  The discount rate of 7.65% used for the June 30, 2015 measurement date is without reduction of pension plan  
  administrative expense.             

 From fiscal year June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017: There were no changes in assumptions.        
     
 From fiscal year June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018: The discount rate was reduced from 7.65% to 7.15%.       
      
 From fiscal year June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019: There were no significant changes in assumptions.       
    
 From fiscal year June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020: There were no changes in assumptions.        
     
* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.        
       

CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Miscellaneous Plan
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years *

Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 2020 june 30, 2019 june 30, 2018 june 30, 2017 june 30, 2016 june 30, 2015

Measurement Period june 30, 2019 june 30, 2018 june 30, 2017 june 30, 2016 june 30, 2015 june 30, 2014 

Total Pension Liability:

Service Cost  $    3,081,271  5,841,112  4,695,802  4,090,236  4,067,785  4,355,760 

Interest on Total Pension Liability  12,692,692  18,953,279  18,532,399  18,056,944  17,411,840  17,237,556 

Differences Between Expected and  
Actual Experience

 
878,117 

 
(751,356)

 
(2,831,782)

 
(3,474,364)

 
(3,567,591)  - 

Changes in Assumptions  -  (1,850,081)  14,854,128  -  (4,107,905)  - 

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of  
Employee Contributions

 
(9,420,571)

 
(13,761,946)

 
(12,918,361)  (12,248,684)

 
(11,541,921)  (11,107,063)

Net Change in Total Pension Liability  7,231,509  8,431,008  22,332,186  6,424,132  2,262,208  10,486,253 

Total Pension Liability - Beginning of Year  283,145,522  274,714,514  252,382,328  245,958,196  243,695,988  233,209,735 

Total Pension Liability - End of Year (a)  290,377,031  283,145,522  274,714,514  252,382,328  245,958,196  243,695,988
 

Plan Fiduciary net Position:

Plan to Plan Resource Movement  -  (478)  (120)  (51)  173  - 

Contributions - Employer  5,016,807  6,739,291  6,167,042  5,532,095  4,846,845  4,657,861 

Contributions - Employee  1,413,634  2,193,366  2,224,806  2,152,622  2,093,924  2,756,106 

Net investment Income  8,547,941  16,426,351  19,143,234  946,139  4,076,489  27,899,638 

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of 
Employee Contributions

 
(9,420,571)

 
(13,761,946)

 
(12,918,361)  (12,248,684)

 
(11,541,921)  (11,107,063)

Administrative Expense  (94,154)  (302,903)  (266,028)  (111,531)  (204,025)  - 

Other Miscellaneous Income/(Expense)  307  (575,217)  -  -  (121,652)  - 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position  5,463,964  10,718,464  14,350,573  (3,729,410)  (850,167)  24,206,542 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning of Year  206,170,789  195,452,325  181,101,752  184,831,162  185,681,329  161,474,787 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of Year (b)  211,634,753  206,170,789  195,452,325  181,101,752  184,831,162  185,681,329 

Net Pension Liability - Ending of Year (a)-(b)  $78,742,278  76,974,733  79,262,189  71,280,576  61,127,034  58,014,659 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of 
the Total  Pension Liability 72.88% 72.81% 71.15% 71.76% 75.15% 76.19%

Covered Payroll  $27,373,391  26,849,757  26,714,363  25,928,148  25,711,112  26,015,092 
 

Net Pension Liability as Percentage of 
Covered Payroll 287.66% 286.69% 296.70% 274.92% 237.75% 223.00%
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CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Miscellaneous Plan
Schedule of Plan Contributions

As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years *

Fiscal Year Ended 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually Required Contribution 
(Actuarially Determined)

 
$  8,922,308 

 
7,480,922 

 
7,472,985 

 
6,265,272 

 
5,641,466 

 
4,533,827 

Contributions in Relation to the 
Actuarially Determined Contributions

 
(8,922,308) 

 
(7,480,922) 

 
(7,472,985 )

 
(6,265,272) 

 
(5,641,466 )

 
(4,533,827) 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)  $                 -    -  -  -  -  - 

Covered Payroll $29,382,974  27,373,391  26,849,757  26,714,363  25,928,148  25,711,112 

Contributions as a Percentage of  
Covered Payroll 30.37% 27.33% 27.83% 23.45% 21.76% 17.63%

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation Date 6/30/17 6/30/16 6/30/15 6/30/14 6/30/13 6/30/12

Methods and Assumptions Used to 
Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age Entry age Entry age Entry age Entry age Entry age

Amortization method (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)

Asset valuation method Market Value Market Value Market Value Market Value Market Value 15 Year
Smoothed

Market Method

Inflation 2.625% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75%

Salary increases (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2)

Investment rate of return 7.25% (3) 7.375% (3) 7.50% (3) 7.50% (3) 7.50% (3) 7.50% (3)

Retirement age (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4)

Mortality (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5)

(1) Level percentage of payroll, closed            
 
(2) Depending on age, service, and type of employment           
  
(3) Net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation          
   
(4) The probabilities of retirement are based on the most recent CalPERS Experience Study adopted by the CalPERS Board.   

(5) Mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resulting from the most recent CalPERS Experience Study adopted by the CalPERS Board. 
              
* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.       
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CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years *

2020 2019 2018

Total OPeB Liability

Service Cost  $   1,727,424  561,616  539,593 

Interest on Total OPEB Liability  1,239,915  453,275  415,621 

Actual and Expected Experience Difference  (3,668,566)  -  - 

Changes in Assumptions  5,380,482  639,848  (167,767)

Benefit Payments  (1,363,211)  (456,126)  (406,018)

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability  3,316,044  1,198,613  381,429 

Total OPEB liability - Beginning of Year  13,467,596  12,268,983  11,887,554 

Total OPEB liability - Ending of Year (a)  16,783,640  13,467,596  12,268,983 

Plan Fiduciary net Position

Contributions - Employer  1,363,211  456,126  745,587 

Net Investment Income  48,942  23,252  372 

Benefit Payments  (1,363,211)  (456,126)  (406,018)

Administrative Expense  (5,249)  (1,690)  - 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position  43,693  21,562  339,941 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning of Year  361,503  339,941  - 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending of Year (b)  405,196  361,503  339,941 

Net OPEB Liability/(Assets) - Ending of Year (a) - (b)  $16,378,444  13,106,093  11,929,042 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total OPEB Liability 2.41% 2.68% 2.77%

Covered - Employee Payroll  $32,081,924  23,524,890  22,209,460 

Net OPEB Liability as Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 51.05% 55.71% 53.71%

Notes to Schedule:  None

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.
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CITY OF PASADENA
Water and Power Enterprise Funds

Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years *

2020 2019** 2018**

Contractually Determined Contribution  $  1,363,211  456,126  745,587 

Contribution in Relation to the Contractually Determined Contributions  (1,363,211)  (456,126)  (1,369,153)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)  $                  -                 -             (623,566) 

Covered-Employee Payroll  $32,081,924  23,524,890  22,209,460 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 4.25% 1.94% 3.36%

Notes to Schedule: 

*   Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.

** Restated
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POWER DIVISION TEN-YEAR OPERATIONS SUMMARY

*  Participating Transmission Owner - Transmission Revenue Requirement         
**  Includes Transfer-in from City, Contribution in Aid of Construction ("CIAC"), Investment Earnings, Cap & Trade Revenues, Low Carbon Fuel  
 Standard (“LCFS”) and Renewable Energy Credit (“REC”) Sales         
***  Includes unbilled MWh           

and Others

1,286,858

1,393,005

1,159,581

1,328,983

Fiscal year Fy 2020 Fy 2019 Fy 2018 Fy 2017 Fy 2016 Fy 2015 Fy 2014 Fy 2013 Fy 2012 Fy 2011

FinAnCiAL dATA  (in thousands)

Operating Revenues  $192,209  180,028  182,755  176,728  181,348  182,945  167,040  167,651  163,213  167,565 

Sales to Other Utilities  5,337  10,714  9,911  5,543  2,256  3,764  4,021  6,522  8,963  7,199 

PTO - TRR*  15,830  14,945  14,652  14,218  13,527  13,608  13,898  14,003  13,753  12,229 

Other Income**  21,606  31,703  12,052  16,842  15,360  21,233  16,728  20,247  10,206  13,948 

Total Revenues  234,982  237,390  219,370  213,331  212,491  221,550  201,687  208,423  196,135  200,941 

Fuel - Retail  4,199  5,446  4,490  5,134  5,617  7,636  8,029  10,808  7,294  5,587 

Fuel - Wholesale  1,508  4,491  2,968  1,150  741  2,012  2,131  3,740  4,066  4,166 

Purchased Power - Retail  90,537  91,667  84,508  87,256  86,162  87,544  123,044  94,734  87,649  89,490 

Purchased Power - Wholesale  1,551  1,953  1,269  861  1,185  963  1,072  1,021  461  755 

Other Production  10,696  9,437  10,464  11,073  10,189  8,619  8,447  8,243  8,351  7,823 

Transmission and Distribution  17,749  18,586  18,498  21,928  14,250  13,708  15,433  14,948  15,161  13,646 

Administrative and General Expenses  19,952  15,072  15,438  17,371  15,745  15,508  27,239  13,100  14,228  11,458 

Customer and Commercial Expenses  9,846  8,983  11,001  13,673  12,462  11,663  12,239  12,433  11,866  10,037 

Depreciation  31,955  31,702  30,217  25,759  25,156  19,290  18,782  18,655  18,408  18,398 

Interest Expense  9,129  9,538  9,019  7,194  4,204  4,556  13,707  7,723  5,955  6,021 

Transfer to General Fund  17,315  17,609  16,847  17,371  17,589  16,122  14,682  14,093  15,861  13,492 

Total Expenses  214,437  214,484  204,719  208,770  193,300  187,621  244,805  199,498  189,300  180,873 

Net Income  $20,545  22,906  14,651  4,561  19,191  33,929  (43,118)  8,925  6,835  20,068 

Total Net Position at end of year  $601,935  581,390  558,484  543,833  539,272  520,081  486,152 529,270  520,345  513,510 

Outstanding Long-Term Debt  206,935  220,990  233,465  245,465  184,445  193,785  202,735  134,485  142,900  150,845 

OPeRATinG And uSAGe dATA (in MWh)

Energy Generated 51,632 67,244 76,194 62,106 48,489 83,296 75,838 168,470 147,749 106,147

Energy Purchased 1,056,742 1,033,370 1,022,168 1,043,220 1,099,525 1,101,285 1,127,617 1,215,779 1,248,368

Total Energy Delivered 1,108,374 1,100,614 1,098,362 1,105,326 1,148,014 1,184,581 1,203,455 1,384,249 1,396,117

Total Retail Energy Sales (MWh)*** 989,663 1,018,656 1,040,640 1,056,046 1,094,750 1,129,617 1,109,888 1,127,252 1,114,111

Total Wholesale Energy Sales 68,513 26,645 13,096 67 310 30,969 36,811 185,361 199,045 169,402

Total Energy Sales 1,058,176 1,045,301 1,053,736 1,056,113 1,095,060 1,160,586 1,146,699 1,312,613 1,313,156

System Peak (MW) 275 302 315 281 307 316 299 292 307 320

Number of Retail Services 67,440 67,025 66,505 66,290 65,611 65,559 65,034 64,926 64,836 63,950

Average Annual Residential Usage 
(kWh)

5,459 5,603 5,577 5,587 5,753 5,731 5,605 5,926 5,696 5,781
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                 Retail and Other electricity Sales

STATISTICAL SECTION 

                                                                    

Wholesale
energy 
Sales

To Other
utilities* Residential**

Commercial 
& industrial**

Street 
Lights &
Traffic 

Signals** Other*** Total
Total
Sales

Revenue from Sales of Electricity

Year Ended June 30

2020  $5,336,904  66,819,819 122,783,113  2,198,535  20,734,521 212,535,988  217,872,892 

2019  10,714,292  62,973,543 115,292,371  1,998,411  27,076,181 207,340,506  218,054,798 

Increase (Decrease)  (5,377,388)  3,846,276  7,490,742  200,124  (6,341,660)  5,195,482  (181,906)

Percent Change -50.2% 6.1% 6.5% 10.0% -23.4% 2.5% -0.1%

 
Megawatt-Hours Sold

Year Ended June 30

2020 68,513 319,437 657,633 12,273  320  989,663  1,058,176 

2019  26,645  325,487  686,614  13,371  (6,816)  1,018,656  1,045,301 

Increase (Decrease) 41,868 (6,050) (28,981) (1,098) 7,136 (28,993) 12,875

Percent Change 157.1% -1.9% -4.2% -8.2% -104.7% -2.8% 1.2%

 
Average Billing Price per Kilowatt-Hour

Year Ended June 30

2020  N/A  $0.209  0.187  0.179  N/A  N/A  N/A 

2019  N/A  0.193  0.168  0.149  N/A N/A  N/A 

Increase (Decrease)  N/A 0.016 0.019 0.03  N/A N/A  N/A 

Percent Change N/A 8.3% 11.3% 20.1% N/A N/A N/A

 
Average Number of Services****

Year Ended June 30

2020 6 58,517 8,923  N/A  N/A 67,440 67,446

2019 4  58,096  8,929  N/A  N/A 67,025 67,029

Increase (Decrease) 2 421  (6)  N/A  N/A 415 417

Percent Change 50.0% 0.7% -0.1% N/A N/A 0.6% 0.6%

 
Average Annual Use per Customer (kWh)

Year Ended June 30

2020  N/A  5,459  73,701  N/A  N/A  14,675  15,689 

2019  N/A  5,603  76,897  N/A  N/A  15,198  15,595 

Increase (Decrease)  N/A  (144)  (3,196)  N/A  N/A  (523)  94 

Percent Change N/A -2.6% -4.2% N/A N/A -3.4% 0.6%
               

*     Includes energy, ancillary, deviation, and transmission revenues and some of the wholesale activities/transactions do not pertain to MWh sold 
**    Includes Public Benefits Charge      
***  Includes:       
 a) Net Change in Unbilled Revenue (320 MWh)  $     407,873  
 b) CAISO-PTO Revenue  15,830,153  
 c) Cap and Trade Revenue  1,659,225  
 d) Connection and Other Service Revenue  486,316  
 e) Low Carbon Fuel Standard  1,108,871  
 f ) Renewable Energy Credit Sales  1,228,374  
 g) Electrical Vehicle Charging Fee  13,709      
    Total   $20,734,521  
   
**** Street Lights and Traffic Signals average number of services are included under the Commercial and Industrial category.    
   

POWER DIVISION SALES COMPARISON
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Fiscal year Fy 2020 Fy 2019 Fy 2018 Fy 2017 Fy 2016 Fy 2015 Fy 2014 Fy 2013 Fy 2012 Fy 2011

FinAnCiAL dATA (in thousands)

Operating Revenues  $62,467  60,181  62,592  58,287  50,835  57,440  61,233  58,536  54,301  47,137 

Other Income  5,552  6,719  4,867  4,945  7,463  9,753  5,778  7,587  8,453  4,302 

Total Revenues  68,019  66,900  67,459  63,232  58,298  67,193  67,011  66,123  62,754  51,439 

Purchased Water  21,155  20,846  21,446  18,701  17,216  19,198  22,596  17,953  16,748  14,862 

Sources of Supply  1,780  1,694  1,632  1,710  1,167  836  891  977  1,009  966 

Pumping  3,824  3,421  3,382  3,153  2,758  2,981  2,731  3,009  2,996  2,917 

Water Treatment  2,515  2,334  2,002  2,671  2,034  3,565  3,761  4,512  3,590  1,504 

Transmission and Distribution  6,811  5,514  5,318  6,642  4,474  4,416  5,443  4,434  5,179  5,292 

Administrative & General Expenses  7,783  7,796  8,051  7,230  6,709  6,517  25,819  5,452  5,159  4,455 

Customer and Commercial  3,571  3,715  1,970  2,006  1,142  1,298  1,288  1,363  1,732  1,485 

Depreciation  8,695  8,379  7,751  6,235  6,037  5,550  5,327  5,402  4,977  4,823 

Interest Expense  2,886  3,037  3,206  3,638  3,770  3,904  3,147  3,172  4,306  3,680 

Transfer to General Fund*  1,894  1,894  1,924  1,894  2,015  1,922  3,968  3,707  3,313  3,104 

Total Expenses  60,914  58,630  56,682  53,880  47,322  50,187  74,971  49,981  49,009  43,088 

Net Income  $   7,105  8,270  10,777  9,352  10,976  17,006  (7,960)  16,142  13,745  8,351 

Total Net Position at end of year $189,951  182,846  174,576  163,799  154,447  143,471  126,465  134,425  118,283  104,538 

Outstanding Long-Term Debt  53,585  56,060  59,755  63,280  69,120  72,425  75,610  78,680  81,665  84,845
 

OPeRATinG And COnSuMPTiOn dATA (in thousands of billing units)

Production

       Pumped Water 4,108 4,340 4,200 4,339 4,226 4,597 4,734 6,363 5,485 4,778

       Purchased Water 8,162 7,897 8,635 7,673 7,073 8,156 10,060 7,951 7,823 8,261

Total Production 12,270 12,237 12,835 12,012 11,299 12,753 14,794 14,314 13,308 13,039

Water System Losses (1,006) (761) (754) (1,015) (981) (341) (951) (1,146) (1,024) (1,070)

Water Sold 11,264 11,476 12,081 10,997 10,318 12,412 13,843 13,168 12,284 11,969

Number of Services 38,193 38,114 38,046 38,067 37,959 37,972 37,974 37,934 37,891 38,067

System Peak (Acre-Feet) 106 120 106 101 93 111 116 126 115 115

* Includes Hahamongna Transfer of $350

WATER DIVISION TEN-YEAR OPERATIONS SUMMARY

Expenses



Pasadena Water and Power 2020  Annual Report68

     inside Outside City Total

Revenue from Sales of Water

Year Ended June 30

2020  $48,886,422 8,071,228 2,779,574 2,729,272  62,466,496 

2019  46,621,545  9,230,240  2,068,738  2,260,141  60,180,664 

Increase (Decrease) 2,264,877 (1,159,012) 710,836 469,131 2,285,832

Percent Change 4.9% -12.6% 34.4% 20.8% 3.8%

 
Billing Units Sold

Year Ended June 30

2020 9,161,720 1,572,494 529,743 11,697 11,275,654

2019  9,495,726  1,568,132  412,624 1,685 11,478,167

Increase (Decrease) (334,006) 4,362 117,119 10,012 (202,513)

Percent Change -3.5% 0.3% 28.4% 594.2% -1.8%

 
Average Price per Billing Unit

Year Ended June 30

2020 5.34 5.13 5.25 N/A N/A

2019 4.91 5.89 5.01  N/A N/A

Increase (Decrease) 0.43 (0.76) 0.24 N/A N/A

Percent Change 8.8% -12.9% 4.8% N/A N/A

Average Number of Services

Year Ended June 30

2020 31,410  6,473 310  N/A 38,193

2019  31,325  6,479  310  N/A 38,114

Increase (Decrease) 85 (6) 0 N/A 79

Percent Change 0.3% -0.1% 0.0% N/A 0.2%

Average Annual Billing Unit per Service**

Year Ended June 30

2020 292 243 1,709  N/A 295

2019  303  242  1,331  N/A 301

Increase (Decrease)  (11)  1  378 N/A  (6)

Percent Change -3.6% 0.4% 28.4% N/A -2.0%

Fire Service & 
 Miscellaneous*

WATER DIVISION SALES COMPARISON

*Includes:

a) Unbilled Revenues  $ (251,810)

b) Sales to Other Agencies †  1,736,500 

c) Miscellaneous Revenues  115,252 

d) Fire Protection-Private  1,129,330 

Total  $2,729,272 

**One billing unit equals 100 cubic feet of water, or 748 gallons 

   

† Includes water right revenues that do not pertain to billing units sold
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CiTy OF PASAdenA
Pledged-Revenue Coverage

Business-Type Activity debt
Last Ten Fiscal years (in thousands)

Light and Power Revenue Bonds

Fiscal year
ended

June 30

Light and
Power

Revenues*

Less
Operating

expenses**

net
Available
Revenues

debt Service ***

Principal interest Coverage

2011  193,049  142,962  50,087  5,320  6,261 432.49%

2012  192,542  149,076  43,466  7,945  6,181 307.70%

2013  193,400  159,027  34,373  9,060  5,885 230.00%

2014  193,701  197,634  (3,933)  8,695  7,190 -24.76%

2015  207,745  147,653  60,092  8,950  8,715 340.18%

2016  204,224  146,351  57,873  9,340  8,347 327.21%

2017  204,287  158,446  45,841  11,290  9,825 217.10%

2018  213,873  148,636  65,237  12,000  11,250 280.59%

2019  230,980  155,635  75,345  12,475  10,778 324.02%

2020  226,285  156,038  70,247  13,005  10,249 302.09%

Water Revenue Bonds

Fiscal year
ended

June 30
Water

Revenues*

Less
Operating

expenses**

net
Available
Revenues

debt Service ***

Principal interest Coverage

2011  47,353  31,480  15,873  2,300  3,518 272.83%

2012  54,777  36,413  18,364  2,390  4,340 272.87%

2013  58,839  37,699  21,140  2,985  4,188 294.72%

2014  61,772  62,529  (757)  3,070  4,045 -10.64%

2015  58,039  38,810  19,229  3,185  3,915 270.83%

2016  51,538  35,500  16,038  3,305  3,781 226.33%

2017  58,551  42,113  16,438  4,430  3,625 204.07%

2018  62,819  43,801  19,018  3,525  3,456 272.43%

2019  62,270  45,321  16,949  3,695  3,287 242.75%

2020  63,902  47,439  16,463  2,475  3,114 294.56%

*    Total operating revenues including investment earnings

**   Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and interest expenses

*** Requirements are reported on a cash basis, excluding premiums

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements.
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